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Statutary auditors’ report on the consclidated financial statements

To the Sole Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by your annual general meetings and your sole
shareholder's decision, we hereby report to you, for the nine-month period ended December 31, 2015,
on:

« the audit of the accompanying consolidated financial statements of TDF Infrastructure;
+ the justification of our assessments;
« the specific verification required by law.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the chairman. Our role is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

I. Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France; those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit involves performing
procedures, using sampling technigues ar other methods of selection, to ebtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made,
as well as the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit apinion.



In our cpinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the assets and
liabilities and of the financial position of the group as at December 31, 2015 and of the results of its
operations for the nine-month period then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Without gualifying our opinion, we draw your attention to the matter set out in note 4.1 to the
consolidated financiat statements relating to the new standards and the interpretations which the TDF
Infrastructure company applied as from the April 1, 2015

H. Justification of our assessments

In accordance with the requirements of article L. 823-9 of the French commercial code (Code de
commerce) relating to the justification of our assessments, we bring to your attention the following
matters:

e Your company's management uses estimates and assumptions which impact the amounts that
appear in the financial statements and the notes thereto. As these assumptions are by nature
uncertain, the final results may differ from these estimates. The accounts subject to significant
accounting estimates are disclosed in note 3.4 to the financial statements and concern mainly
goodwill amounting toc M€ 1,624, intangible assets amounting to M€ 169, tangible assets
amounting to M€ 1,248, and provisions amounting to M€ 123.

e Regarding goodwill, intangible and tangible assets, we have reviewed the methodology carried out
for the impairment tests, data and assumptions used as well as reports produced by the
independent experts appointed by your company. As mentioned in notes 9.1 and 9.2 to the
financial statements, key assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2015 impairment tests
include notably the discount rate. We have aiso verified that notes 9.1, 9.2 and 9.3 to the financial
statements provide appropriate disclosure.

» Regarding provisions, we have assessed the basis for their estimation; we have reviewed the
approval process of these estimates by management as well as the underiying decumentation in
order to assess the reasonableness of the assumptions made. We have also verified that notes
10.5 and 10.6 to the financial statements provide relevant information. In addition, we ensured
that note 15.1 “Contingent liabilities {assets)” provide appropriate disctosure about pending dispute
not covered by a reserve in the consolidated financial statements.

These assessments were made as part of our audit of the consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, and therefore contributed to the opinion we formed which is expressed in the first part of this
report.

ill. Specific verification

As required by law we have also verified in accordance with professional standards applicable in France
the information presented in the group’s management report.
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We have no matters to report as to its fair presentation and its consistency with the consolidated
financial statements.

Paris and Paris-La Défense, March 23, 2015

The statutory auditors
French original signed by

FINEXSI Audit KPMG AUBIT IS S.ALS. ERNST & YOUNG et Autres

OClivier Peronnet Eric Lefebvre Patrick Cassoux
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
Year ended December 31, 2015

Restated
i Fhousands euros Notas Des 2015 Maxch 2025

- o (2 months) {12 months)
Revenue 81 525 244 742 978
Other income &2 2 303 16 279
Consurned purchases 8.3 (50 4286} 67 B73)
Personnel costs &4 (111 107} (162 407)
External expenses 85 (9% 534} {132 818)
Profit on disposal of non-current operating assets £6 2627 1463
Other expenses &2 {13 407) 2217
EBITDA 253 740 375 605
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 87 (131 685; {180 175}
Current Operating Income 124 055 185 430
impaL_rm(_‘n»t of goodwill & intangible asseis identified in business 8.7/9.1/9.2 1 @897
combinaticns
Other operating income 88 BES T a5
Other operating charges 88 (30 915} (3 261}
Operating Income 93 673 184 571
income from cash and cash equivalents 95 385
Gross finance costs {86 050} {257 182)
Net finance costs 5.9 (85 955) {256 797)
Chher financiai income 54 388 327
Share of net lesses of associates i5 (3 280} 6 738)
Income tax 810 (43 056) {50 393)
Net loss from continuing gperations {38 220} {129 030)
Net income / loss from discontinued operations "y (264 235}
NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR (38 220) {393 269}
Other comprehensive income
Currency translation differences (115} 1 866
Cash flow hedge 3 83727
Actuarial gains 2971 {32 363)
Fair value of available for sale assets 381 809
income tax on other comprehensive ncome {1023 (21 477)
income and expenses recognized directly in equity BIEFT 1 964 37 756
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR {36 256) {355 513)
Meat income {loss) for the year attributable to
Owners of the company (39 521) {365 014}
Mon controliing interests 1301 1745
Total comprehensive intome {loss) for the year atiributable to
Cwners of the company {37 SA5) {357 170
Non controlling interests 1328 1658
Earnings per share
Basic (in euros) 4) {0}
Earnings per share - continuing operations
Basic {in eurgs) 4) {0}




Consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2015

Restated
i thousands euros Notes Dec 2015 March 29015
Non-current assets
Goodwili a3 1624 428 1622 087
Intangibie assats 5] 168 7549 184 835
Property. plant and equipment 9.3 1247 63¢ 1268 957
Shares in associates 16 - 3 2R
Financial assets available for sale a4 78 sk
Other non-current assets g4 12 516 1% 093
Deferred tax assels 187 2495 282
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3 054 4566 3 498 767
Current assets
Inventories 55 4024 3902
Trade receivables S8 127 685 210 42%
QOther current assets r T 167 70 451
{ash and cash equivalents geA 145 252 67 899
Assets held for sale i 11 417 HEAeE
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 359 545 363 910
TOTAE ASSETS 3414 911 3 462 677
Restated
in thausands euros fores Dec 2015 March 2015
Share capital 300 000 74% 379
Additional peid-ln capiial 1116 703 1511 157
Currency transiation reserve 351 466
Qther reserves ano Retained samings {1 248 374} {2 516 568)
Net income {loss} of the year - attributable to owners of the company PR} {385 014}
Non-controlling interests 15 220 16 193
TOTAL EQUITY 2.4 144 379 (633 787}
Non-current liabilities
Eond debt iaz 592 761 -
Bank debt dNE= 183 802 021 1 385 142
Shareholders’ debt gz 1063 598 1023698
Other financial debts 10.2 7 424 4 7G8
Provisions 05 - 106 89 418 56 406
Deferred tax lizbilities in7 304 939 320 661
Orher non-current liabilikies 108 23 Bl7 41 451
Accried interest - 216
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2 883 939 2 832 282
Current liabilities
Bank debt i07-103 3 30 000
Shareholders’ debt inz - 815 000
Other financial debts A2 28 318 2 634
Provisions 05 -106 33 386 A5 320
Trade payables 108 123 864 118338
Tax and social liabilities 108 87 701 137 84%
Other current tabidizies 108 84 402 ik ety
Bank overdrafts a7 251 1425
Accrued interest 25 744 200
Liiahilities refated to assets held for sale @ .51 S
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 385 643 1 264 182
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3414 011 3462 677




Consolidated statement of cash flows,
Year ended December 31, 2015

Restated
Dec 2015 March 2015

in thousands auros Motes (9 months) (12 months)

Net loss from continuing operations (38 220) {129 030)
Non-cash items and ether adjustments

Depraciation, amortisation and bmpairment 121 685 195 069

Change In provisions and non-cash expenses 28 4586 {13 562}

Loss on disposal of non-current assefs (2 FBT) 9209

Total income tax expense 43 056 RO B3

Finance income and expenses 83 046 269 505
Fash ge.nerated. from operating activities before changes 53 245 236 166 166
in working capital
income tax paid {65 038) {92 124}
Change in Working Capital 222 14 HOR 11 288
Net cash from operating activities 194 206 285 230
Acquisitions of non-current operating assets (94 872) {136 017)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current operating assets 3923 2102
Acquisition of controlling interests, net of cash & cash equivatents acquired {136
Net proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries formely controtled {11 448} 192 190
Change in other financial assets 5 78l {4 623)
Net cash used in investing activities 123 {87 978) 53 652
Dividends paid to non-contrelling interasts Pyl T
Proceeds from hond debt 600 000 .
Proceeds from bank debt - 14580 000
Bank debt repayments (623 000} {3 833 962
Proceeds from sharehotders' debt - 1838 898
Proceads from other financial debts 26 634 74 305
Other financiat debts repayments {3 069) 3134)
Fees related to the refinancing 8 3878} {15 f20;
Balancing payment received (given) on financial instruments = 34 538
Revenue from cash and cash equivatents 45 385
Financial interesis (including financial lease) {7 56%) {199 489)
Net cash used in financing activities 124 {17 538) (714 027)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash {115) 1656
NET CASH FROM CONTINUING ACTIVITIES 78 555 {374 879}
Net cash from discentinued activities 125 - 259 819

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

78 555 (115 260}

Opening cash & cash equivalents
Closing cash & cash equivalents

66 513 181 778
145 073 66 518
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Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
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Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

1. Highlights of the year

Change of annual closing date

The Group has changed its annual closing date and will close its financial statements each December 31 (previously
March 31). The current financial year disclosed exceptionnaly lasted 9 months {from April 1st 2015 to December
31st 2015).

TDF SAS Signed agreement - employee-related measures to support early leaves

An agreement was signed on July 23, 2015 concerning employee-related measures to support the leaves necessary
to adjust the workforce. The cost of this plan is estimated at 26.8 million euros and was recognized during the
period (see the notes 8.8 and 10.6).

Evolution project by Arkena SAS and Smartjog France

Discussions are ongoing concerning the strategic directions and the crganization of these entities, and they'll likely
lead! to employee-related measures. As of now, costs related to this reorganisation are estimated at 3.5 million
eurcs and have been provisionned (see the notes 8.8 and 10.6).

Capital of TDF Infrastructure SAS — transactions on capital - change of direct and indirect shareholders
See the note 10.1.

Acquisition of the company AD Valem Technologies

See the note 9.1.

Bond issue on October 19, 2015 and partial repayment of bank term debt

On October 19, 2015, TDF Infrastructure SAS issued a bond of €600 million whose characteristics are described in
the note 54.

Following this bond issuance, €593.0m were repaid on October 19 on the tranche A of the bank term debt of the
credit facility agreement implemented with the banks on March 31, 2015 (see aiso the notes 5.4, 10.2 and 15.3).

Disposal of SYL

On December 29, 2015, the Group has disposed of its shares in the company Smartlog Ymagis Logistics. This
company was 40% owned and was consolidated under the equity method. Please refer to note 16 which details the
disposal impacts.

IFRIC 21 application from April 1, 2015

See the note 4.1 which details this new standard and its impacts on the Group financial statements. March 2015
figures are disclosed after retrospective application of this new standard (« Restated » mark).

New definition of the Group CGUs

In November 2015, following the disposal of German and Hungarian entities, the change of shareholders and
governance of the Group, the Group has defined four new CGUs : TDF, Arkena, Médiamobile and Levira.

The CGUs Arkena, Médiamobile and Levira represent all together less than 10% of revenues, assets and profits of
the Group.

See also the notes 4.11, 9.1 and 19.



Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consclidated financial statements December 31, 2015

2. General presentation

The Group's consolidation head company, TDF Infrastructure SAS (formerly Tyrol Acquisition 2 SAS), s & "societe
par actions simplifies” (simplified joint stock company) with registered office at 106, avenue Marx Dormoy, 92 120
Montrouge.

As a partner to television, radio, telecommunication operators and local governments, the Group provides know-
how in audiovisual services (TV and radio digital broadcasting, radio FM broadcasting), in telecommunications
{design, deployment, maintenance and management of 2G, 3G and 4G telecommunication networks infrastructures,
ultra high speed connection, hosting on roof tops , datacenters and hosting of broadcasting and reception
equipment on proprietary sites), management and broadcast of multimedia contents to all fixed and mobile
devices. To these ends, the Group draws upon its recognized expertise and over 10 100 terrestrial sites mainly in
France. The Group focuses on developing new digital solutions: connected Digital TV, catch-up TV, ultra high
definition television etc.

The Group operates in markets characterized by sweeping changes in both technology and regulations (for
example, some businesses are subject to pricing constraints imposed by local regulatory authorities).

2.1 Presentation of the financial statements
The main performance indicators used by the Group are:

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization), which is equivalent to current operating
income before depreciation, amartization and impairment of assets.

Current operating income, which is equivalent to operating income before:
- Any impairment of goodwill,
"Other operating income"” and “other operating expenses”, which may include,

o Material and unusual gains or losses on sale and/or impairment of non-current tangible and
intangible assets ;

o Certain restructuring charges: this concerns only restructuring costs that would be likely, due fo
their unusual nature and their significance, to misstate current operating income ;

o Gains or losses on sale of subsidiaries net of selling costs, liquidation costs and acquisition costs of
subsidiaries ;

o Other operating income and expenses, such as a provision for material litigation, changes n
provisions for dismantling affecting income and related to changes in calculation assumptions.



Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

3. Basis of preparation

3.1 5tatement of compliance

The TDF Infrastructure Group consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Internationat Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and applicable at the
reporting date, namely December 31, 2015.

IFRS can be downloaded from the following website:
htip//eceuropaeu/internal_market/accounting/tas/index_frhim

The TDF Infrastructure Group’s financial statements were approved by the Chairman of TDF Infrastructure SAS on
March 23, 2016.

3.2 Functienal and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are stated in thousands of euros, which is the presentation and functional
currency of the Group’s consolidation head company.

3.3 Basis of measurement

Financial statements have been drawn up on the historical cost basis, except for the following items that are
recognized at fair value: financial instruments held for trading, available-for-sale financial instruments and liabilities
arising from cash-settled share-based transactions. Methods applied to estimate the fair value are explained in note
4.12.

34 Judgments and estimates

In the process of drawing up the consolidated financial statements, the measurement of certain balance sheet
items requires the use of assumptions, estimates or assessments. This is notably the case with goodwills (notes 9.1
and 4.11), tangible and intangible assets (notes 4.9 to 4.11, 9.2 and 9.3), amounts of provisions (notes 10.5 and
10.6), deferred tax valuation {notes 4.8 and 10.7) and recognition of revenue (note 4.4). These assumptions,
estimates and assessments are made on the basis of information available or situations existing at the time the
financial statements are drawn up, and may subsequently turn out different from future conditions.

At each closing date, the Group identifies the assets for which a disposal has been initiated and assesses if the sale
is highly probable as required by IFRS 5.

IFRS 5 states that an entity shall classify a non-current asset (or disposal Group} as held for sale if its book value will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For the sale to be highly
probable the asset {or disposal Group held for sale) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition
and management must be committed to the sale.

In additicn, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification. In this case the non-current asset (or disposal Group) is valued at the lower of its carrying
value and fair value less costs to sell.

Most Group entities have multi-year agreements with large customers. During the term of the agreements and
upon expiry and/or renewal, discussions take place between those entities and their customers over the conditions,
particularly financial, that have applied to these agreements. In view of this, where applicable, the entities record in
their books the expected benefits and obligations under the agreements, including their best estimate of the effect
of consequences deriving from the terms thereof. These estimates are uncertain by nature, and the final results may
prove significantly different from estimates made at the date of preparation of the financial statements.

The Group is not subject to significant seasonal fluctuations.

3.5 Error corrections

No error correction has been accounted for during the year.
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Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

4. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies described hereunder have been applied by all Group entities throughout all the periods
presented in the consolidated financial statements.

The accounting policies are unchanged compared to those used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, except for the points mentioned in note 4.1 below.

4.1 Standards and interpretations in force

The group has applied the standards, amendments to standards and interpretations as adopted by the European
Union that are required tc be applied from January 1, 2015, notably IFRIC 21 "“Levies charged by Public
Authorities”,

IFRIC 21 provides guidance on when to recognize a liability for a levy imposed by a government that is accounted
for in accordance with |AS 37.

Applying IFRIC 21 brings forth the immediate recognition of some levies which falls within the scope of the
standard, the full charge of the year being recognized as soon as the obligating event as defined in the fiscal law
occurs. Property tax, IFER and €3S tax {tax on revenues), which expenses were spread over the year, are now fully
recognized on 1% January.

In these financial statements, March 2015 figures are disclosed after retrospective application of this new standard
{« Restated » mark).
At March 31, 2015, on a full year, the impacts of this interpretation:

- bhad no significant effect on the income statement or on the Group's cash flow,

- led to an increase of tax and social liabilities of €7.4m and a decrease of deferred tax of €2.5m.
At December 31, 2015, IFRIC 21 application resulted in a €9.1m decrease of expenses {the above 3 charges being
fully recognized on the 1% January, while the Group financial year is from 1 April to 31 March).

In addition, the Group has decided not to adopt the new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
early, whether there already adopted by the European Union or net, for which the mandatory application date is
after this financial year.

Concerning IFRS 15 « Revenue from contracts with customers », the analysis of the impacts of this new standard
has begun and will be continued in 2016.

4.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of TDF Infrastructure SAS and its
subsidiaries, as well as the financial statements of associates and joint ventures. All those entities make up the
Group, for which the consolidation scope is described in note 18.

Entities are included in the consolidation scope at the date when control is transferred to the Group. They are
excluded from the consolidation scope at the date they cease to be controlled by the Group.

Subsidiaries

In compliance with IFRS 10, subsidiaries are all entities on which the Group exercises control, that is to say:
- power over the entity;
- exposure, or rights, to variable return from its involvement with the subsidiary;
- ability to use its power over the subsidiary in order to affect the expected returns.

Subsidiaries’” financial statements are consolidated, and non-controlling interests are measured on the basis of
percentage equity interest.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, meaning the power to participate in the
financial and operating decisions but not to exercise control over these policies. Significant influence is presumed
when the Group holds directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries 20% or more of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for under the equity method.

Under this method, investments in associates are reported as a separate item on the balance sheet and the net
income of associates is reported as a separate item in the statement of comprehensive income.
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If the Group's share of the losses of an associate exceeds the carrying value of the investment, the investment is
written off. The Group continues to recognize its share of the losses of the associate only to the extent it has a
binding obligation to make additicnal investments to cover the losses.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests are identified separately within equity. The share of non-controlling interests in
consolidated net income is reported as a separate item in the statement of comprehensive income.

4.3 Forelgn currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the
time of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated
using the historical exchange rate as at the date of the transaction, while those measured at fair value are
translated using the exchange rate as at the date on which fair value is determined.

Translation of foreign entities’ financial statements

The functional currency of foreign companies is their local currency, which they use for most of their transactions.
The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is not the euro are translated into euro
as follows:
- Assets and liabllities, including related goodwill, are translated at the rate prevailing on the reporting date,
- Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate over the period (the average
exchange rate is an approximate value of the transaction date rate when there is no significant
fluctuations),
- The cash flow statement is franslated at the average exchange rate over the period.
Exchange differences arising on translation are shown in the currency translation reserve included in  equity. In
case of a loss of control of a foreign entity, the cumulative amount in the currency translation reserve related to this
foreign entity is taken to profit or loss. In the case of a partial disposal without loss of control, a proportional part
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences related to this entity held in the currency translation reserve is
reclassified from equity attributable to owners of the company to non-controlling interests.

Exchange rates used for the period

The following were the functional currencies used in the Group:

December 2015 March 2015
Average Closing Average Closing
Polish zloty 023913 0,235838 £,238848 0244774
uUs dollar 0906167 0,919563 {3, 788550 0928454
Hungarian forint* na. na, 3268269 3302401
Danish krone 0134022 0,134030 G,1341496 (133874
Norwegian krone 0113020 3,104619 0,118325 (0114896
Swedisk krone (3,106984 0,107608 0108360 0107641

Figures are reported by Hungarian subsidiaries in millions of forint: average and closing rates correspond to rates
at the end of May 2014, when the Hungarian entities were sold.

4.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue consists in the sale of goods and services to third parties, net of discounts or rebates and sales related
taxes. Intra-group sales are eliminated in the consolidation process.
Sales of goods and services (IAS 18)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of cwnership have been
transferred to the buyer.
No revenue is recognized if a major uncertainty exists as to the recoverability of the amount due by the buyer.
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Revenue from services is recognized:
» Once the service has been rendered; or
+ Based on the stage of completion at the reporting date, by reference to the work performed under a
contract whose execution spans the reporting date; or
e On a straight-line basis over the period when the services will be rendered or, for advance one-time
invoices for site access costs or for customers contributing to capital expenditure, over the term of the
initial contract,

Construction contracts (IAS 11)

Revenue from construction contracts is recognized by reference to the stage of completion as measured by the
propartion of the work that has been carried out.

When a loss is expected, it is recognized in profit or loss Immediately.

Royalties (1AS 18}

Royalties are recognized in accordance with the economic substance of the relevant agreements.

Agency relationships (IAS 18)

When Group entities act as agent on behalf of a principal, the only revenue recognized is the value of the
commission received, and the amounts collected on behalf of the principal are not considered as Group revenue.

4,5 Government grants {1AS 20}

Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions associated with the grant.

Grants related to assets {investment grants) are shown as a reduction in the carrying value of the asset and
amortized over its useful life by a reduction in the depreciation charge.

Operating grants are credited to profit or loss in the periods associated with the related costs.

4.6 Leases

Operating leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Finance leases

Group as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are recognized as Group assets at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if

lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments (using the implicit rate of interest for the relevant
lease). The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease liability. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability.

Group as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net

investment in the leases. Revenue is recognized by reference to the conditions applied to a direct sale with
immediate payment. Amounts receivable are apportioned between finance income and the repayment of the
outstanding capital amount.
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4,7 Financial income and charges

Financial income consists of interest on investments, dividends received from non-consolidated entities, increases
in fair value of financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, and gains on hedging instruments
recognized in profit or loss.

Dividends are recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment is established.

Financial charges consist of interest on borrowings, the unwinding of discounts on provisions, reductions in fair
value of financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses recognized on financial assets
and losses on hedging instruments recognized in profit or loss.

Exchange gains and losses are recognized at their net amount.

4.8 Income tax

In France, the entities TOF Infrastructure SAS, TDF SAS, Smartjog France and Arkena SAS formed with TDF
Infrastructure Holding SAS, maln shareholder of the Group, a tax consolidation group until March 31 2015. From
April 1, 2015, a new tax consolidation group was created headed by Tivana France Holdings (single shareholder of
TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS since March 31, 2015). All French subsidiaries which are directly or indirectly owned
by Tivana France Holdings SAS at 95% at least are included in the tax consolidation group (except for the company
Ad Valem Technologies).

Income tax have been calculated in compliance with the tax consclidation convention in force, in which each entity
of the tax consolidation group bears its own income tax charge and keep the benefits of its tax loss carried forward
towards the tax consalidation group head company, as if the entity was on its own from a tax point of view.

On this basis, income tax expense or income consists of current tax expense (income) and deferred tax expense
(income). Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except if it relates to a business combination or to
items recognized directly in equity or in other items in the statement of comprehensive inceme.

Current tax is the estimated amount of tax payable (or receivable} on the taxable profit {or loss) of a period and of
any adjustments to the amount of current tax in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method for all temporary differences between the carrying value of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Temporary differences linked to the Group’s holdings in its subsidiaries do
not give rise to recognition of deferred tax, to the extent that these differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities depends on when the Group expects them to be reversed,
using the tax rates in force or anncunced at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that the Group expects to have future profits to which they
may be applied.

In accordance with 1AS 12, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

With effect from January 1, 2010, the French finance act replaced the taxe professionnelle with the contribution
économigue territoriale (CET), which is made up of two component parts: the confribution fonciére des entreprises
(CFE) based on the rateable value of the property occupied by the business, and the cotisation sur la valeur ajoutée
des entreprises (CVAE) based on the value added of the business each year. The Group considers the CVAE as
income tax. In accordance with 1AS 12, this classification requires the Group to recognize related deferred tax since
2009, notably on depreciable non-current assets; the deferred tax liability related to the CVAE amounts to €7.7m.

4.9 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost (of acquisition or production), less accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Cost includes expenses directly attributable to the transfer of the asset to the place where it is to be
used, and to preparing it for use.

Where applicable it also includes costs relating to the dismantling and removal of assets and to restoring sites to
their original states where the Group is obliged to do so, without being subject to subsequent revaluation,

The total cost of an asset is broken down between its various components each of which is accounted for
separately. Such is the case where different components of an asset have different useful lives.

14



Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

Current mainienance and upkeep costs are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized as an expense based on the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each
component of property, plant and eguipment.

Land is not depreciated.

Items of property, plant and equipment to be scrapped are fully depreciated before being derecognized.

Useful lives in years:

Buildings 18 to 50 years
Pylons 10 to 40 years
Transmitters 8 to 40 years
Microwave links 8 to 15 years
Office furniture, office and computer equipment 3 to 10 years ]
Other 4 to 24 years

The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized following a business combination is based on market
values and/or replacement cost where appropriate.

Leased assots

Lease agreemenits having the effect of transferring to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits inherent in
ownership of an asset are classified as finance leases. An asset is recognized and measured at the lower of the fair
value of the lease and the present vaiue of the minimal lease payments, and is depreciated over the term of the
agreement. The corresponding liability is shown under financial liabilities. All other lease agreements are treated as
operating leases.

Safety inventories

The major safety and spare part inventories that are essential to maintain property, plant and equipment and to
ensure its continuous use, that have no other use and that the Group intends o use over a period lenger than 12
months are recognized as property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the same period as the principal
asset to which they are related.

Spare parts for which use (consumption, capitalization or sale) is not pre-specified are recognized under
inventories.

410 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase price of the investment in the consolidated companies
and the fair value of their identifiable net assets at the date of transfer of control to the Group. At the acquisition
date the fair value of the assets and liabilities of the acquired entity are determined by reference to market values
or, failing that, by using generally accepted methods such as those based on costs and revenues.

Costs incurred by the Group in relation to the acquisition are expensed as incurred and recognized in other
operating expenses, except costs related to acquisition of non-controlling interests which are recognized in equity.

Except at the time of a business combination, assets and liabilities acquired are not revalued.

Negative goodwill arising from an acquisition is recoghized immediately in profit or loss within operating income,
under the heading "Impairment of goodwill”,

Goodwill recognized on associates is shown under “Shares in associates” on the balance sheet. Impairment of
goodwill recognized on associates is shown in the statement of comprehensive income under "Share of net profits
(losses) of associates”.

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are recognized as transactions with shareholders and do not give rise to
goodwill

In accordance with IFRS 3 “Business combinations”, goodwill is not amortized and is subject to an impairment test
at least once a year and whenever an indicator of loss of value occurs (see note 4.8).
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Research and development costs

All research costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.
Development costs deriving from the application of the results produced by research are caputalized only to the
extent that the Group can demonstrate that:

- It has the intention and ability to complete the project;
- The probability is that future econemic benefits will accrue to the Group;
- Costs can be determined in a reliable manner.

On average, development costs related to the Media Services business are amortized over 3 to 5 years, and over 10
to 15 years concerning other activities. Amortization is calculated under the straight-line method.

Other development and similar costs not meeting the above criteria are recognized as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

Other intangible assets
This heading comprises:

- intangible assets recognized at the time that acquisition consideration is allocated: mainly order backlog,
customer relationships, patents, technology and the benefits accruing from leases and trademarks. With
the exception of trademarks, these assets are amortized, where appropriate, on a straight line basis over
the economic life of the asset in question (primarily the average term of the contracts: see note 9.2).

- lease rights acquired for consideration represented by a guaranteed minimum payment to DFMG from
Media Broadcast (see note 9.2), amortized over the duration of the first lease period.

- other intangible assets (mainly software and patents) are amortized using the straight-line method: ten
years for patents and technologies and five years for software.

Intangible assets to be scrapped are fully amortized before being derecognized.

Subsegquent expenditures

Subsequent expenditures relating to intangible assets are capitalized only to the extent that these expenditures will
enable the asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance.
All other expenditures are expensed (n the period in which they are incurred.

Measurement of intangible assets arising from a business combination

Fair value is defined as “the price at which an asset could be expected to be exchanged between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm'’s length transaction”.

The Group uses a revenue-based approach to estimate the fair value of intangible assets recognized following a
business combination. This approach determines the value of an asset by reference to the present value of the
future revenues attributable to it (or of the cost savings achieved from owning the asset).

The two main revenue-based methods are:
- The royalty method

This method consists in discounting to present value the future revenues that could be obtained by licensing the
asset to a third party. The revenues that would be thus generated are estimated by applying a royalty rate
appropriate to the total revenues generated frem using the asset.

- The super-profits method

This method measures assets by reference to the discounted present value of the future super-profits to be made
from use of the asset. It consists in discounting, over a sufficiently long period and at an appropriate rate, the
super-profit flows generated by the asset, after deducting a fair return for the other assets and liabilities used to
generate the flows. _

The life of an asset is determined by taking the period during which the asset contributes directly or indirectly to
the Group's future cash flows.
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4,11 impairment

Financial assets

A financlal asset is subject to impairment whenever there is an objective indication that an adverse event has
occurred subsequent to its initial recognition and that this event has a negative impact on the future cash flows of
the asset that can be rellably estimated.

Non-financial assets

Carrying values of the Group's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date in order to assess whether
there is any indication that an asset has suffered impairment. If there is such an indication, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated, and if necessary an impairment expense is recognized to bring the carrying value of the
asset down to its recoverable value, as described below.

For goodwiil and intangible assets with an indefinite life, the recoverable amount is estimated on an annual basis
during the last quarter of the fiscal year or during the year if an indicator of loss of value arises. For other non-
current tangible and intangible assets, the recoverable amount is estimated if there is any indication that an asset
has suffered impairment.

Estimation of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset or group of assets is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.

Fair value less costs to sell is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset or group of
assets in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. This
estimate (s determined by using available market information. Fair value is estimated on the basis of projected cash
flows discounted to present value, using assumptions that any market player would make. In particular, account is
taken of any restructuring, expansionary investment that would normally be envisaged by any market player.

The fair value thus determined is further corroborated by observing the EBITDA multiples resulting from recent
transactions and a sample of comparabie listed companies.

Value in use as generally used by the Group corresponds to the present value of the future cash flows expected to
be derived from an asset or group of assets based on assumptions made by the Group's management regarding
economic, regutatory and forecast operating conditions. These cash flows correspond to those generated by the
assets in their current operating state.

In all cases, discounted cash flows are determined as follows:

» Cash flows are obtained from eight to ten-year plans; this period corresponds to the time needed for activities
such as digital television to reach maturity;

e Beyond this horizon, cash flows are extrapolsted using a growth rate to infinity that reflects the market's
expected long-term growth rate;

e Cash flows are discounted to present value using rates that reflect the risks inherent te the activities and
countries concerned,

Definition of Cash Generating Units

The Cash Generating Unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets generating largely independent cash
inflows,

Goodwill impairment tests are carried out at the level of CGU groups of CGUs corresponding to the level at which
the monitoring of returns on investment is carried out, for internal management purposes, taking account in
particular of the expected synergies between the CGUs.

The CGUs or groups of CGUs that are selected for goodwill impairment tests are:

- March 2015: France, Arkena AB {ex Qbrick), Bebanjc and Other (CGUs Germany and Hungaria were
disposed of during the period).

- December 2015: following the disposal of German and Hungarian entities, the change of shareholders and
governance of the Group, the Group has defined four new CGUs: TDF, Arkena, Médiamobile and Levira.
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Tangible and intangible assets do not as a rule generate independent cash flows, and are therefore tested at the
level of the CGUs to which they belong. These assets may nonetheless be subject to individual tests in cases where
their fair value can be determined and/or it can be established that there is no reason why their value in use should
exceed their fair value,

Recognition of impairment

If the carrying value of a CGU or a group of CGUs exceeds its recoverable value, an impairment loss is recognized,
without any off-setting with other CGUs or groups of CGUs for which the carrying value is less than the recoverable
value. Impairment losses are recognized as other operating expenses. An impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying value of any goodwill allocated to the CGU or group of CGUs tested, and then against the
carrying value of the CGU or group of CGUs other assets,

An impairment loss recognized against goodwill cannot be reversed in a subsequent period. For assets other than
goodwill, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss
recognized in prior periods may no longer exist or may have decreased, and if such is the case, the increased
carrying value of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss may not exceed the carrying value that
would have been determined, net of amortization or depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years.

4.12 Financial instruments

The Group initially recognizes loans, receivables and deposits on the date on which they are generated. All other
financial assets are initially measured on the date on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms
attaching to the instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the centractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

Financial assets and liabilities are netted and shown for the net balance if, and only if, the Group has the legal right
to offset them.

Group financial instruments are detailed hereinafter:

Financial assets recognized at fair value

Financial assets at fair value comprise financial assets held for trading, namely financial assets held by the Group
with the intention of selling in the short-term or which are part of a portfolio managed to generate short-term
profits. Changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

This heading includes receivables relating to non-consolidated equity holdings, other loans and receivables and
trade receivables.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value, which is generally the same as their nominal value unless the
impact of discounting them to present value is significant, and thereafter at their amortized cost.

Nevertheless if the recoverable amount becomes lower than the net carrying value, an impairment charge Is
recognized under operating income.

Cash and cash equivalents

This comprises current account balances with banks as well as cash equivalents defined as short-term investments
{the term of the investment is usually less or equal to 3 months) that are highly liquid (can be sold at any time
without impact on their value), and readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of loss in value (with historical data confirming the regularity of their growth in result).

For purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents is stated net of bank overdrafts.

Financial assets available for sale

These mainly comprise the Group's equity holdings in non-conselidated companies.

Available for sale assets are measured in the balance sheet at fair value, and changes in value are recognized
directly in equity except where an impairment test leads to the recognition of a material or ongoing unrealized loss
relative to historical acquisition cost, in which case the impairment is recognized through profit or loss.

Amounts recognized in equity are taken to profit or loss upon disposal of available for sale financial assets.
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Fair value corresponds to market price for listed securities or to estimated fair value for unlisted securities,
determined in accordance with the financial criteria most appropriate to the particular circumstances of each
investment,

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Group has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: financial borrowings and debts, bank overdrafts,
trade payables. After initial recognition at fair value less transaction costs, corresponding to the consideration
received, these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost under the effective interest method.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash outflows over the expected life of
the financial liability to the net carrying value on initial recognition.

Purchase of own equity instruments

If the Group buys back its own equity instruments, the value of the consideration paid, including directly
attributable costs, is recognized in equity, net of tax.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

To hedge its exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange risk, the Group can use derivative instruments
(however the Group doesn't have any derivative instruments since March 31 closing). Certain transactions, which in
accordance with the Group's management policy do not meet hedge accounting criteria, are recognized as trading
instruments and the changes in fair value are recognized directly through profit or loss.

Hedge accounting applies:

« assoon as any transaction is so designated and documented when put in place,

e to the extent that the effectiveness of the hedge is proven (in a range of 80% to 125%).

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow or a net foreign investment hedging instrument, the change in fair
value of the derivative corresponding to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in the cash flow hedge
reserve through other comprehensive income in equity, The ineffective portion of the change in the fair value of
the hedge is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value; attributable transaction costs are recorded in profit or loss when
incurred. Following initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value and resulting changes are recognized
in accordance with the methods described hereunder.

According to IFRS 13, derivative financial instruments are recognized in balance sheet at their fair value including
the effect of the Group’s net exposure to the counterparty credit risk {for asset derivative financial instruments ) or
the counterparty's net exposure to the Group credit risk (for liability derivative financial instruments). This credit risk
estimate is based on likelihood of default observed in the market for Groups with a similar rating TDF Infrastructure
SAS Group and on an estimation of recoverability rate specific to the TDF Infrastructure SAS Group.

Types of hedge

Fair value hedges aim to hedge exposure to changes in fair value that might affect a recognized asset or liability or
an unrecognized firm commitment where such changes are attributable to a particular risk and may affect earnings.
TDF Infrastructure Group has no fair value hedges.

Cash flow hedges are intended to cover exposure to fluctuations in cash flows or to net foreign investments
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability that may affect earnings. The
contractual flows associated with interest rate swaps are paid at the same time as those associated with variable
rate borrowings, and the amount deferred in equity is taken to profit or loss over the period in which the interest
on borrowings impacts profit or loss.

Hedges of the net investment in a foreign operation are intended to cover the risk of a diminution in the value of
assets in the event of a fall in the exchange rate of the currency in which the financial statements of the subsidiary
are established.
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Fair value estimates

The fair value of financlal instruments traded on active markets, such as derivatives and investments traded on
public markets is based on the market price quoted as at the reporting date. This valuation method is classed as
level 1 in the hierarchy defined by IFRS 7.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded on active markets, such as over-the-counter derivatives, is
determined using valuation techniques. The assumptions used are observable either directly (Le. prices) or
indirectly (i.e. determined on the basis of prices). This valuation method is classed as level 2 in the hierarchy defined
by IFRS 7.

The fair value of instruments classed as level 3 is determined in accordance with a valuation technique not based
on observable market data. In this case fair value is based on estimates made using discounting and other
techniques.

The levels used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments are stated under note 11.

Effectiveness tests

Two types of test exist:

Prospective tests: prospective tests are performed using the so-called “change in fair value changes” method. At
each reporting date, a computation is made applying the new interest rate environment tc demonstrate that the
change in the present value of the hedged items (Le. interest coupons) is correlated to the change in the present
value of the cash flows of the variable portion of the hedging instrument.

Retrospective tests: retrospective tests are performed using the so-called "hypothetical derivative” method, which
compares changes in:
- the value of the actual swap designated as the hedging instrument
- the value of a hypothetical swap that, based on its terms and conditions, hedges perfectly the risk and that
had no value at the inception of the hedging retationship.
Results of these comparisons must be within a range of 80-125% throughout the term of the hedge for the hedge
to be regarded as effective.
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5. Financial risk management

5.1 Credit risk
The total carrying value of financial assets takes account of the maximum exposure to credit risk.

Trade receivables

For some major TV, Radio and Telecom customers, sales invoices are issued in advance in compliance with
contractual terms. The income effect of such receivables is adjusted by cut-off journal entries (deferred income,
invoices to be issued, etc) so as to correctly allocate income to each period.

Trade receivables are subject to provisions for impairment depending on the risks incurred and on ageing.
Short-term investments

The Group places its cash with first class banking institutions, the objective being to generate a secure, as opposed
to a speculative, return. Cash is invested in euro-denominated money market UCITS and in term deposits with a
maturity of under 3 months.

5.2 Market risk

A. Management of imterest rate risk

Exposure to the Group's interest rate risk can be analyzed below:

Dec 2015 March 2015
i EAGUs3 nds puros Qutstanding % of the debt  Quistanding % of the debt
Fixed interest rate debt 1666 910 66,8% 1 845902 56,6%
Variable interest rate debt 827 723 332% 1415 280 434%
Total before hedging 2 494 633 100,0% 3 261 182 A00,0%
Fixed interest rate debt 1666 310 66,8% 1845 402 56,6%
Varlable interesl rate 827 723 83 2% 1415 284 43,4%
Total after hedaing 2 494 633 100,0% 3 261 182 100.0%

At the December 31, 2015 closing date, the Group notably bears:
- €1 063.6m of debt with fixed interest rate towards its direct and indirect shareholders ;
- £€807.0m of debt with variable interest rate (excluding loan issuance costs) on the new bank agreement
which is for now not hedged by derivative financial instruments.
- £600.0m of bond debt {excluding loan issuance costs).

Sensitivity analysis of cash flows for variable rate instruments

No variable rate instrument is owned by the Group, neither at December 31, 2015 nor at March 31, 2015.

B. Exchange risk

The Group's functional currency is euro. The Group has little exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in other
currencies.

53 Liquidity risk

To ensure liquidity, the Group has available resources of €394.9m (€287.8m as of March 31, 2015):
Cash and cash equivalents of €144.9m as of December 31, 2015 (€67.8m as of March 31, 2015);

- A Revolving Credit Facility usable for an amount of €250.0m negotiated under the new bank credit
agreement signed on March 31, 2015 for use mainly by TDF Infrastructure SAS to cover its own needs and
those of its subsidiaries in respect of acquisitions, capital expenditure and working capital.

This line is not used as of December 31, 2015 {£30m were used as of March 31, 2015).
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Contractual maturities of financial debt break down as follows (including interest payments):

Dec 2015 Maturities
_ lto 5
In thausands aiiros Book value Cash flow < 1 year e > B years
Mon-derivative financial instruments
Financial depls - Nominal Z 506G 851 2 506 851 28 818 821 443 1 B56 590
Loan issue expensas W2 Z18) S " 5 e
Finangial interests = 949 251 128 210 438 533 382 508
Trade payables 123 864 123 864 123 864 = -
Total financial liabilities 2 618 497 3 579 8656 280 892 1 259 976 2 039 098
March 2015 Maturities
. e 1to 5
fn thousands euros Book value Cash flow < 1 year Saam > 5 years
Non-derivative financial instruments
Financial debts - Nominal 3 276 D40 72 461 040 32 634 1404 708 1023 698
Loan issus expenses (14 B5R) s = - -
Financial interest = 1249 842 12 916 62 630 1174 236
Trade pavables 118 338 A ZISSE 118 328 H =
Total finanecial liabilities 3379520 3829220 163 888 1 467 398 2197 934

See the notes 10.2 and 10.3 which describe the split and nature of financial debts, and also the note 5.4 hereafter
which describes the bank credit facility agreement of the Group.

As of December 31, 2015 we have:
The shareholder debt, towards Tivana France Holdings for €1 063.6m, with a fixed rate interests of 7.7% and
a maturity of 10 years that is to say March 31, 2025 (the borrower has an extensian option):
- The debt towards TDF Infrastructure Holding of €815m at March 31 2015 was entirely capitalized on April
10, 2015 (against share capital and share premium, see note 10.1};
- The bond debt, issued on October 19, 2015, for €600m and with a fixed coupon of 2.875% ;
- The senior debt of € 807m , with variable interest rates, breaks down as follows:
o A term debt tranche of € 107m for which contractual maturity is November 6, 2017,
o A term debt tranche of € 700m for which contractual maturity is November 6, 2019

Regarding the €815m capitalized on April 10, 2015, and the €1.7m of related interests also capitalized (see the note
10.1), these amounts are included in the column “Book value” but not in the columns “Cash flow" in March 2015.
Except for this loan, financial expenses are calculated up to the contractual maturity of the liabilities to which they
relate,

By prudence, maturities on financial debts (bank and bond debts) correspond to contractual maturities, without
presuming any early repayments,

For debts with variable interest rates, interest rates used are the forward rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Concerning the shareholder loan of €1 063.6m towards Tivana France Holdings, quarterly interests on that debt are
capitalized, or can be paid if TDF Infrastructure SAS determmes it, and a change of disclosure is to be noticed:

- in the disclosures of the table above at March 31 2015, it is considered that all interests are capitalized and
reimbursed in the end on March 31, 2025,

- in the disclosures of the table above at December 31% 2015, following the latest amendments to the
shareholder loan and by prudence when calculating the liquidity risk, the assumption taken is that interests
are paid every quarter over the loan length, without taking into account the deferred payments or
capitalization mechanisms that are authorized by the loan contract.
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5.4 indebtedness

The Group has contracted an unsecured senior debt towards bank lenders (« bank debt ») and bondholders{« bond
debt »).

Bank debt

At December 31, 2015, like March 31, 2015, the TDF Infrastructure SAS group has a bank credit facility agreement,
which was implemented within the context of the change of shareholders on March 31, 2015, called "Facilities
Agreement”. The Group’s former bank agreement was completely terminated as of March 31, 2015.

This credit facility agreement notably includes:

- the definition of a financial ratic ("Covenant”), that the Group has to comply with at various defined periods
(see below) ;

- the indexation of the cost of the debt, through the fact that the margins applied to some tranches are set
up depending on the Group's rating as determined by rating agencies (the rating can be public or private),
and the fact that margins also depends on the aging of the debts (increasing margins over time) ;

- afloor Euribor rate of 0%, so that the global interest rate (margin + Euribor) paid by TDF Infrastructure SAS
will never be lower than the applicable margin ;

- the application of anticipated prepayments under certain conditions (notably in case of a change of
control, IPQ, in case of certain conditions of excess cash flow, or bond issuance) ;

- restrictive conditions (subject to exceptions included in the facility agreement) limiting the possibility for
Group companies to perform certain transactions;

- a condition to terminate pledges and commitments that the Group has given when the bank agreement
loan was set up, and which was activated on October 19, 2015 when part of the tranche A of the term debt
was repaid, following the bond issue (see note 15.3).

The bank agreement includes a leverage ratio covenant, disclosed hereafter:

c:\?en::::':tt::t: P Caleulated covenant as
Limit fD ber 31, 2
Ratios S December 31, 2015 0 oo 2ot . e
FA
Fa
Leverage ratio This ratio has to be
iower than or equal to 532 388

{ronsolidated net deld / consolidated EBITDA) : g
ihe foliowing flimits

Some adjustments, defined in the bank agreement, are applied to the consolidated aggregates for the ratio
calculation.

This covenant is calculated and communicated to the lenders’ agent twice a year, in June and December with
respect to the change of annual closing date {see note 1).

The leverage ratic covenant at the end of December is met, and its calculation is certified by the Group auditors.

Bond debt

On October 19, 2015, TDF Infrastructure SAS issued a bond whose main characteristics are the following:

- Nominal amount : €600m

- Market : Euronext Paris

- Maturity : 7 years, L.e. October 19, 2022

- Fixed coupon : 2.875 %

- Coupon annually paid cn 19 October

- option given to bondholders to call for an early repayment in case of a change of control (under some
conditions)

- 1.25% step up of the annual coupon in case the Group rating becomes lower than BBB- {or rating
equivalent to BBB-).
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5.5 Operational risk

Compliance with Group policies is supported by a program of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit.
Conclusions are submitted to the Audit Committee and Group senior management.

The Group has taken out insurance policies to manage liabilitles in respect of corporate officers, general third party
liabilities and those concerning vehicle lease contracts, material damages and loss of profits.

6. Operating segments

Pursuant to IFRS 8, the Group reports its results and assets by operating segment. The determination of the
operating segments reflects the Group’s internal reporting structure. The results of all operating segments are
regularly reviewed by Group senior management with a view to assessing their performance and to taking
decisions on the resources to allocate to each segment.

Following the dispasal of German and Hungarian CGUs and new definition of CGU performed this year (see note
notes 4.11 and 9.1), the CGU TDF itself represents more than 90% of revenues, assets and profits of the Group. The
results of the Group are therefore reviewed as a whole, there is for now only one segment,

Under IFRS 8, the Group discloses revenue by business line which breaks down as follows:

. Television: carrying and broadcasting analogue and digital signals and related services, provision of
uplink services, temporary or permanent rental of ‘space’ (satellite transponder time), allowing TV and
radio broadcasting to given territories,

. Radio: carrying and broadcasting signals and related services,

. Telecom and Services: hosting of broadcasting and reception equipment on Group sites, providing
maintenance and engineering services, locating sites, data centers, high speed networks,

. Media services: pre-broadcasting/final control rooms, smart transport activities (traffic information},
storage and digital delivery of multi-media content,

. Cther; royalties generated from intellectual property, income and interest from rentals

Flnally, figures disclosed hereafter represent the way the Group activity is reviewed internally, notably:
a Key indicator « EBITDA excluding severance payments and related fees” is followed up, which correspond
to EBITDA restated from all charges corresponding to severance payments and recognized over the period
(legal and transactional severance payments) among the Group, and all fees directly related (lawyers, etc),
- a comparison between revenue and last year revenue (9 months), restated from German and Hungarian
entities (not consolidated at all, no interco elimination) and after application of December 2015 exchange
rates (“Restated A").
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De¢ 2014
™M 15
Dec 2015 arc(f]l-zzo (3 months} Change
in thousands ouros {9 maonths) Restated A in %
months) =
Unaudited
Digital Television 162 248 224 951 166 758 -3%
Satellite 3 25 2 609 1234 -1%
Radio 98 637 136 368 101 5358 -3%
Total Broadcasting Services 262 160 363 929 269 530 -3%
Telecom: site hosting 189671 260 982 192 089 =1%
Telecom: other services 23 063 43 292 28177 -18%
Total Telecoms & Services 212734 304 274 220 266 -3%
Media Services 42 041 58 464 44 710 -6%
Lo
E |Others 8 309 16 306 11 943 -30%
o
§ Tetal revenue 525 244 742 978 546 449 4%
i
@ 5
Z |[EBITDA excluding severance payments p— ada sus
and related fees
EBITDA 255 740 375 605
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment losses (121 685) {190 175}
Cusrent Operating Income 124 055 185 430
Impairmant of goodwill & intangible assets identifled in ] 4 897)
business combinations
Other eperating income and charges (30 382} 4038
Operating Income 93 673 184 571
Net cash from operating activities (aj 194 206 285 339
Operating capex free from working capital (@9 606) (129 544)
effects (b)
% Working capital effects on net operating capex {c) {5 266) {& 473}
Operating disposals net from working capital A 3102
effects (d)
Operating cash avaitable 103 257 =0
f{a) + (b) + (c) + (d))
Workforce (full-time average eguivalent) 2028 2 150
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7.

Discontinued operations, assets held for sale and disposed entities

7.1 Discontinued operations

German entities (MediaBroadcast sub-group) were disposed of on March 31, 2015. These entities were a business
segment, a CGU and a major geographical area of operations in the Group, so they are classified as discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5 as of March 31, 2015.

Thus, according to the standard:

Income and expenses {contributive figures excluding intercos) of German entities have been reclassified on
the line "Net income (loss) from discontinued operations” in the Group's comprehensive income statement
in March 2015;

The net capital loss realized with the sale of these entities on March 31, 2015 (s also reclassified on this line
of the Group's comprehensive income ;

In the same way, the Group’s cash flow statement is disclosed after reclassification of cash flows from
German entities, which are reclassified under the line " Net cash from discontinued activities" ;

Finally, the assets and liabilities are no more consolidated in the Group's balance sheet at March 31, 2015
{entities sold)

The detail of incomes and expenses reclassified under "Net income {loss) from discontinued operations” is
presented below;

March 2015
in thousands euros
{12 months)
Hevenue 314 343
Other incoma RIEES:
Consumed purchases (71 872}
Personnet cosis (67 216}
External expenses {69 443}
Profit on disposal of non-current operating assets At
Other expensas (& 240}
EBITDA 165 358
Diepreciation, amortisation and impairment losses 491 464)
tmpairment of goodwill & intangible assets identified in (11 211
bBusiness compinations
Cther operating charges {244 B38)
OPERATING LOSS {242 155)
Financiat income and expenses {12 178}
Income tax {9 206)
NET LOSS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (264 239)

At March 31, 2015, other operating income and charges include:

The net capital loss realized on the sale of German entities, that is to say a loss of € 340.0m. This loss
includes a receivable write-off of € 25.2m, and disposal costs for € 0.4m (€ 0.6 m of costs had already been
incurred in 2013/2014);
An income of €104.2m corresponding to the agreement to sell rights to use the orbital position 28.5°
signed by MediaBroadcast with SES Astra. This income corresponds to the following counterparts:

o £ 43.5m of cash received from SES Astra,

o recognition of an asset of € 60.7m corresponding to the right of use granted by SES Astra for two

transponders for a duration of 16 ¥ years.
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7.2 Assets hetd for sale and disposed entities

Hungarian subsidiaries

The effective disposal of the three Hungarian subsidiaries occurred on May 30, 2014, Incomes and expenses of
these three Hungarian subsidiaries remain included in the Group's comprehensive income statement during 2014-
2015 financial year until the disposal date (2 months activity), because these entities are not material enough to be
classified as discontinued activity according to 1FRS 5.

Their contributions ta the Group's comprehensive income statement and to the cash flows statement at March 31,
2015 are the following:

In thousands euros Mawch 2035

' {Z months)

Revenue 8821
Gther incorme i3
Consumed purchases {2177
Personnel costs {2 281}
External expanses {1 356}
Frofitfloss on disposal of non-current operating assets 10
Othar expenses {1 079}
EBITDA 2731
Other operating income and expenses (781}
PDepreciation, amortisation and impairment tosses {2 70
OPERATING LOSS {730)
QOther finance expenses (562}
Income tax 28
NET LOSS OF DISPOSED OPERATIONS {1 264)
Net cash from operating activities of disposed 1 851

operations

MCR

The Monaco subsidiary MCR is qualified as asset held for sale since March 31, 2015 closing: indeed a decrease in
ownership percentage bringing forth a loss of control is already signed, and will be effective on March 31, 2016.

Its assets and liabilities are reclassified at the bottom of the balance sheet but its incomes and expenses, as well as
its cash flows, remain included in the Group's comprehensive income and cash flows statement.
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The contributive figures to the profit and loss and to the balance sheet are the following:

In thousands euros H9s-S Wsealy BOLY
sapas e {9 months)} {12 months)
Revenue 3 844 5694
Other income = 8
Consumed purchases (898) (1049
Personnel costs (567 (859)
External expenses (303} 405}
Loss on disposal of non-current operating assets {28) 3
rther expenses 105 168
EBITDA 2 253 3 560
Other operating income and axpensas - -
Depreciation, amortisation ard mpairment losses {158} {207)
OPERATING INCOME 2 095 3 353
Qther finance expenses 33 4]
fncome tax 657 (1064}
NET INCOME OF DISPOSED QPERATIOGNS 1435 2292
‘Net cash from operating activities of disposed
; ¥ . P 1206 957
operations
in thousands suros Dec 2015 March 2015
Goochwill ] 8523
Fixed assets i 235 1263
Trade receivables 1443 1414
Other receivables 80 288
Deferred tax assets 104 101
Cash and cash equivalents 25 44
Assets from held for sale activities 11 417 11 233
Provisions 629 Q40
Financial debls 34 =
Trade payables 236 SRt
Other payables 618 588
Liahilities from held for sale activities 1517 1773

In accordance with IFRS 5, when non-current assets and groups of assets are first classified as held for sale they are
recognized at the lower of net carrying value and falr value less selling expenses.
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&. Notes to the statement of comprehensive income

General comments:

e Incomes and charges of German entities, qualified as “discontinued operations” according to [FRS 5, are
restated in March 2015 figures (see notes 7.1) ;

+ Incomes and charges of Hungarian entities, disposed of on May 30, 2014 remain included in figures disclosed
for September 2014 and March 2015 until their disposal date (see note 7.2) ;

» Incomes and charges of MCR, is included in figures for all the periods disclosed (see note 7.2);

» March 2015 figures are compliant with the application of the new amendment IFRIC 21 (see note 4.1).

8.1 Revenue

Dec 2015 March 2015

in thousands euros {9 months) {12 months)

Digital Television 162 298 224 951
Satellite 1225 2 609
Radio 28 637 136 369
Total Broadcasting Services 262 160 363 929
Telecom: site hasting 189 671 260 982
Telecom: other services 23063 43 292
Totzi Telecoms & Services 212 734 384 274
Media Services 42 041 58 460
Gthers 8 309 18 306

Total revenue 525 244 742 978

8.2 Other income and expenses {in current operating income)

Dec 2015 March 2015

In thousands ewros (9 months) restated
{12 months)
Other income 2 343 16 279

Other income and expenses mainly comprises insurance compensation, income from penalties received and
operating grants received.

At March 31, 2015, it includes €12.0m of research tax credit income recognition. The Crédit d''mpdt Recherche
{Research Tax Credit) is recognized as other income when the Group is reasonably confident that its applications to
be filed with the tax authorities will not be challenged.

, Dec 2015 March 2015

in thousands ewros (9 manths) restated
{12 months)
Business tax (B 699 {8 657)
Froperty fax {39) {& 361}
Othar taxes (1514) {4 1053
Provision on receivables - Prav. for risks and charges 1722 & 270
COther operating expenses {6877 {7 218)
Other expenses {13 407} {22 071)
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The line "Provision on receivables — Prov. For risks and charges” includes changes in provision for risks and charges
and changes in provisions on trade receivable and other current assets. The reversals of provision for risks and
charges correspond to conclusions reached concerning litigation already provisioned, and to successful
negotiations for the Group.

In March 2015, Hungarian entities (disposed of during the period, see note 7) represent 1.1 million euros of other
operating expenses.

8.3 Consumed purchases

Dec 2015 March 2015

fry tF: kY7 s
7 iRousaRas euros (9 months) {12 months}

Resold purchases {17 342} {26 2507
Epargy and fuels {31 363} (39 598)
Other purchases tncuding change in inventory {5 689 {13 499)
Capitalized purchases 4 568 11 674

Consumed purchases {50 426) {67 673}

In March 2015, Hungarian entities (disposed of during the period, see note 7) represent 1.2 million euros of total
consumed purchases.

In December 2015, Resold purchases notably include expenses related to the GSMR network deployment contract,
and Energy and fuels are impacted by a price rise and an increase in the number of sites of the Group.

8.4 Personnel costs

Dec 2015 March 2015

in thoussnds euros
n thoussads euro (9 months) {12 months)

Salaries & wages (80 912} {116 844}
Soctal security contributions {9737y {38 845}
Tax contribulions on salaries & wages (A5G {5 465)
Statutory employse profit sharing (6 198) ] {5 586)
Post-empioyment benefits ; defined benefit plans {1578} {1491)
Post-amployment benefits : defined contributions {B 430 (11 178)
Cther personnel costs e AR (% 5053
Capitatized personnel cosls 23624 26 527

Total personnel costs {111 107) {162 440)

In March 2015, Hungarian entities (disposed of during the period, see note 7) represent 2.3 million euros of total
personnel costs (out of which 1.7 million euros of Salaries & wages).

Other personnel costs largely comprise contractual employee profit sharing, various staff expenses {workers’

council, lunch contribution, Committees for Occupational Health and Safety etc), and accruals for vacation and
other employee costs.
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8.5 External expenses

Dec 2015 March 2015

7 thousands euros
e (9 months) (12 months)

Real estate {28 313) (35 8&6)
Technical subcontracting {37 689) {52 155}
Administrative subcontracting {1l 085} (12 388}
Expenses linked to personnal (11 830} {17 5200
Surveys & consuliing fees {6224} {8 946)
Exlernal & internai communication costs {1 472} {2 521)
Corporate fees {3113 96
Insurance (1811} {2 498}

External expenses {95 534) (132 818)

In March 2015, Hungarian entities represent 1.6 million euros of total external expenses.

8.6 Profit on disposal of non-current operating assets

At December 2015 and at March 2015, profit on disposals mainly corresponds to sales completed by TDF SAS.

8.7 Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses

Dec 2015 March 2015

i Fheusands euros
{2 menths) (12 months}

Amortisation of intangible assets (&3 275 {52 397
Depreciation of tangibiz assets {104 479) (122 2373
Write-back of investment subsidies 838 1136
Impairment of intangible assets 4 693 (4 753)
Impairment of tangible assets 532 (11 924)

Depreciation, amortization and impairment losses {121 685) {190 175)

In March 2015, Hungarian entities represent 2.7 million euros of total depreciation, amortization and impairment
losses.

Depreciations of intangible assets recognized at the end of March 2015 concern Bebanjo (€1.3m) and Arkena AB
and its subsidiaries {€3.4m), and are due to a deterioration of growth and cash flows forecasts.

Depreciations of tangible assets of £11.9m recognized at the end of March 2015 notably concern:
- Arkena AB (Sweden) and its subsidiaries, for a global amount of €0.5m, due to the reasons mentioned
above,
- TDF SAS for €11.4m, notably due to the fact that the forecasted phase out of middle waves activities was
shortened.

In December 2015, thanks to improved growth and profitability forecasts of Arkena AB (Sweden) and Bebanjo, part
of the depreciations of tangible and intangible assets mentionned above were released (see note 9.2).

Dec 2015 March 2015
{9 months} (12 months)

b1 thousands euros

Impairment loss of intangible recognised on business combinations - {2 061)
Impairment loss of goodwill - {2 836)
impairment loss - {4 897)
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Over the previous period, impairment losses correspond to:
- a new and final depreciation of €2.1 m of Arkena AB (ex Qbrick) customer relationship, and an additicnal
depreciation of £2.4m of the goodwill of Arkena AB CGU, for the reasons mentioned above,
- an additional depreciation of the goodwill of Bebanjo CGU for €0.4m,

8.8 Other operating income and charges

At December 31, 2015, other operating income and charges mainly include costs, which are significant and unusual,
and are recognized in non-recurrent operating income (below EBITDA}:
- Costs related to the agreement signed on July 23rd concerning employee-related measures to support the
leaves necessary to adjust the workforce by TDF SAS (see also the note 10.6), out of which :
o A provision allowance of 26.2 million euros,
o Actual costs incurred for 0.6 miliion euros,
- 3.5 million euros of provision allowance for employee-related measures concerning the evolution project
by Arkena SAS and Smartjog France (see the note 10.6).

At March 31, 2015, other operating income and expenses principally correspond to the following ttems:

- €2.2m of fees and charges concerning previous disposals ;

- €1.6m of net capital gain for the disposal of Hungarian entities during the period, including €5.4m of
additional disposal fees (€4.9m of fees were already incurred at the end of March 2014); in addition, a
charge of € 1.0m is recognized in the financial results and corresponds to the accounting for a currency
option EUR / HUF which had been contracted to hedge the currency risk on the sale proceed; the net
impact in comprehensive income at March 31, 2015 for the disposal of Hungarian entities is thus €0.6my;

- €0.9m of additional allowance on Analog TV dismantling provision by TDF SAS, due to a change in actuarial
assumptions (in compliance with IFRIC 1, these adjustments should be posted to the income statement
because the underlying assets are fully depreciated} ;

- Otherwise the change of shareholders and the refinancing of the Group also triggered :

o bonus due for managers, representing a net charge of €0.3m over the period, which corresponds
to the actual expenses net from provisions releases and reinvoicing of part of the bonus to Tyrol 1
acquisition & Cie SCA {former shareholder of TDF infrastructure Holding SAS);

o reinvoicing of fees incurred by the Group in the frame of this operation to Tyrol Acquisition 1 & Cie
SCA, representing a net income of €6.0m.
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8.9

MNet finance costs

Net finance costs can be broken down as follows:

PR T—— Dec 2015 March 2015
USRS
{9 months) {12 months)
il Revenues from avatlable fundsplaced . . 35 o JEcEo e
Total financiat revenwe(ay e i T LI 385
Finance expenses linked to debt @ ond debt (3 487)
Finance expenses linked to debt : Bank term debtl {7 930} (A55 910}
Finance expenses tinked to debt : Bank debt revolving {790} {2 893}
Finance expenscs linked to debt : Sharehaotders (62 112} (14 857
Finance expenses linked to debt : Financiai lease 84} (282)
Finance expenses linked to debt ; Other dabis A (257)
Refinancing costs {8 268) {15 020)
Result on financial instruments measured at amoriized cost {b} {82 411) (129 229}
Capitalisation & amuartisation of loan issue expenses {c] (2 639} 13 401
Net change in fair value of financiat assets at fair value through . (167 892)
profit or loss
Ineflective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges S {17}
Met change in fair value of trading financal asset 26 555
o Profit (ioss) related to devivatlyves (d) - . ¢ (81 354
Totsl financeexpenses (b= i v (3 + () it (257 192)
Net financial debht cost {a} + {e} {85 955} (256 797)

Apart from the difference in the financial year lengths disclosed (9 months for December 2015, 12 months for
March 2015), change in the net financial debt cost compared to the previous year is principally explained by the
change in the capital structure and the refinancing of the Group that took place on March 31 2015, and by the
bond issue of October 19. Main consequences are:

Lower bank debts interests charges due to :
o a diminution in the average value of bank debts (term debt and revelving debt), which decrease
{excluding loan issuance costs) from 3 766.3 million euros at March 31 2014 to 1430 million euro at
March 31 2015, and to 807 million euras at December 31 2015,
o a significant margin effect, as the average margin of tranches of the new credit facility agreement
(0.8%) is lower than the average margin of the former bank agreement tranches all together (4.2%),
o to lower average Eurlbor interest rate over the period;

a global increase of interests on shareholders loans, which nature and amounts have significantly evolved,
in conjunction with the decrease of senior debts; at December 31 2015, the Group has a shareholder loan
of 1 063.6 millien euros with a fixed interest rate of 7.7 % ;

interest charges of 3.5 million euros recognized on the bond debt issued on October 19 2015 (600 million
eurcs, fixed coupon of 2,875%);

a £10.0m increase concerning refinancing costs and amortization of loan issuance expenses, as new
expenses were activated after the refinancing operation of March 31, 2015 and then again for the bond
issuance on Qctober 19 2015; the loan issuance expenses are amortized since their activation, besides the
charge of the period notably include a one shot amoriization of €3.6m related to the €593m repayment of
the tranche A of the term bank debt following the bond issue;

the absence of charges on financial instruments in December 2015, which is due to the fact that they were
all terminated on March 31, 2015 prior to the refinancing that took place on March 31 2015; no new
financial instrument has been contracted since.

See also the notes 10.2 and 10.3 which describe the financial debts and their characteristics.

At December 31, 2015, excluding shareholders debts, the average interest rate on financial debt is 2.24% (6.80% at
March 31, 2015). This change is due to the refinancing of the Group on March 31, 2015 and the absence of financial
instrument,

33



Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

Other financial income and charges are as follows:

Dec 2015 March 2015
{9 months) {12 months)

Iri thousanas eurns

Met discounting costs excluding net debt {89 Lz v
Forex losses (265) e
Other financial income 752 Wi

Other financial revenues 398 327

NB: figures in March 2015 column are disclosed excluding contribution of German entities (in accordance witl IFRS 5)
Net discounting costs mainly concern discounting effects on provisions.

Finance income and expenses recognized under other comprehensive income are as follows:

Dec 2015 March 2013
{9 months) (12 months)

in thousands auros

Currency transtation differences for foveign operations {115} 1 600
Effactive portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - 10 165
Met change in falr value of cash fiow hedges transferred to profit or oss S 58 562
incame tax on other comprehensive income - {24 728}

£inance income and expenses recognised in other
(115} 45 999

comprehensive income
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£.10 Income tax

In France, the entities TDF Infrastructure SAS, TDF SAS, Smartjog France and Arkena SAS formed with TDF
Infrastructure Holding SAS, main shareholder of the Group, a tax consolidation group until March 31 2015. From
April 1, 2015, a new tax consolidation group was created headed by Tivana France Holdings (single shareholder of
TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS since March 31, 2015). All French entities owned directly or indirectly at least 95%
by Tivana France Holdings SAS are inctuded in the tax group (excluding the company Valem Ad Technologies).

The scope of the tax consolidation group being therefore greater than the consclidation of TDF Infrastructure SAS
group, it should be noted that the effects of the tax consolidation {recognition of the tax group benefit and the Tax
Group's tax loss carried forward) are not recagnized in these consolidated financial statements. On the contrary,
each entity calculates its tax expense on its own and recognizes its tax loss carried forward (or not) on its own,
according to its own results and its own perspective to use or not the tax loss carried forward it generates.

The income tax is analyzed below:
Dec 2015 March 2015

i thousands suros
{9 months) (12 months)

Current tax expense {53 4449} {74 764)
Autres imphts sur le résultat {6 364) (8 933)
Defarred {ax axpense Lo T 33 264
Income tax expense from continuing operaticns {43 056) (50 433}
income tax from discontinued operations and disposed entities = (9 506}

Total income tax (43 056) (60 3393

Note that among the €53.4m of current tax expenses mentioned above (€74.8 as of March 31, 2015), €52.2m
concern TDF SAS ((€72.8 as of March 31, 2015}, and are actually offset at the tax consolidation group level by loss of
other companies, such as Tivana France Holdings SAS, TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS, TDF Infrastructure SAS,
Arkena SAS or Smartlog France (see hereafter).

Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income is analyzed below.

Pec 2015 March 2015
{9 months) {12 months}
Tax Tax
{n thowusands euros Pre-tax  {Expense)/ Netoftax Pre-tax  (Expense)/ Netoftax
Credit Cregdit

Currency translation differences for forsign operations (115} g (115} 1000 3 1000
Cash flow hedges = 69727 {25 540) 44 187
Actuarial gains on defined benefit plan 2871 {1 023} 1948 {12 303} 4 (63 (8 240}
Others 131 - 1=, 0% = 809
Total 2987 {1023 1964 59 233 (21 477) 37 756

Note that since the end of March 2015 the Group no longer has a cash flow hedging instruments.
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The reconciliation between the theoretical income tax and the actual income tax reccgnized is provided below:

Dec 2015 March 2015
(9 months) {12 months)
ier thousands euros Value Rate Rate Value
Loss for the perlod (38 220 (393 196)
Total income tax for the period {43 056) (60 339
Brofif axcluding income tax 4 836 {332 857
Theoretical incomeﬁtax based on the French statutory (1 665) 34,43% 34.43% e
income fax rate

Bermanent differences on disposais -31.76% (105 69%)
Mon-deductible interest {6 395} 132.24% -6,594% {23 084)
Other income tax expenses (CVAE, ei¢) {4 009} 82.90% 37T% (5 894
impatrment of tax loss carried forward (28 269} 584,55% -13,69% {45 567)
impact of goodwill impatrment and [FRS 5 loss = - E8% W EiT)
Effact of difference in foreign tax rates {theoretics! rate} 29 -6,08% -0.64% {21200
Effect of tax rate changes LEF ~37.00% -0,49% {1 645}
£xceptional statutory charge (4 87 1040,70% -2.05% 6 240}
freferred tax on "CVAE" (1) 543 -1226% 0,26% 875
Rasaarch Tax Credit & 4191
Gzrman entities (discontinued activities) - 4.14% 13 788
Cithers (568] 11.75% -0,20% {668}
Actual income tax {43 056) 890,32% -1% 309% {60 338)

1) This deferred tax income relates o the Group decision to classify CVAE as income fax

At March 31, 2015; the permanent difference on disposals effect is explained by:
- €(108.2) m concerning the disposal of German entities : see note 7.1, the net consolidated capital loss on
this disposal is of €340m,
- €24m concerning the disposal of Hungarian entities.

At December 31, 2015, the changes related to depreciations or non-recognition of tax loss carried forward assets
are notably linked to TDF Infrastructure SAS: the impact of the tax loss carried forward brought forth by TDF
Infrastructure SAS over the period and unrecognized amounts €23.8m vs €381m as of March 31, 2015. The
evolution is explained by the difference in durations of the presented periods and the decrease of financial
interests thanks to the Group's refinancing on March 31, 2015.

TDF Infrastructure SAS, SmartJog France SAS and Arkena SAS deferred tax assets are not recognized (€3.7m over
the period), since these entities do not have strong enough forecasts demonstrating consumption of tax loss
carried forward, but note that a tax consolidation is actually done -above TDF Infrastructure SAS level (see above).

Effects related to tax rate changes and exceptional statutory charge primarily relate to TDF SAS and TDF
Infrastructure SAS, which from financial year 2012 until December 31, 2015 are subject to an exceptional statutory
charge, which increased the applicable tax rate to 38%. The current tax expense paid by TDF SAS to Tivana France
Holdings {head company of the tax consolidation group, see above} is based on this statutory charge.

The evolution of non-deductible interests is due to the difference in durations of the presented periods, the change
in the equity structure and the Group’s refinancing on March 31, 2015, which notably resulted to a significant
reduction of financial interests.

As a reminder, in France, the interest’s deductibility limit is 75%. This tax effect concerns interest costs on bank
debts, on bond debt and on the shareholder loan.
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9. Notes to the balance sheet: assets

Except for deferred taxes that are classified as non-current assets or liabilities, assets and liabilities are classified as
current when the amounts are expected to be recovered or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting

date. If this is not the case, they are classified as non-current.

General comments:

» Assets and liabilities of German entities, sold on March 31, 2015, no longer appear,
e Assets and liabilities of MCR are reclassified on *Assets/Liabilities held for sale and discontinued

operations” since March 31, 2015 (see note 7.2} ;
e March 2015 figures are restated from the impacts linked to the application of IFRIC 21 {please refer to note

413

91 Goodwill

At December 31, 2015, Group goodwill breaks down by CGU or group of GGUs as follows:

Change in Change in
consolidation [rngpairment consolidation Currenlcy Reclassifi-cation
It thousands euros March 2015 T i s el tra nsii.amn aay s oo Dec 2015
acouisitions /IFRS 5 A

France 1 604 923 - = {1 604 523 =
TOF - 0580 1 608 675 18611016
Arkena - 2628 2628
Mediamobile - 10784 10784
Levira - -
Arkena AR (ex Qbrick) - -
Babanjo - . -
Cithers (%) 17 164 (17 164} -
Total 1622 087 2341 - - - - 1624428

In December 2015, following the sale of German and Hungarian entities, the shareholders change and Group
management, the Group redefines four CGU: TDF, Arkena, Médiamobile and Levira (see also note 19).

Group's goodwill has been reallocated by CGU on a weighted basis, relying on the enterprise values deduced from
the latest business plans approved by the shareholders on November 25, 2015 (see note A below), and the capital
employed by each CGU's as of December 31, 2015.

The change in consolidation scope of €2.3m on the CGU TDF corresponds to the acquisition of AD Valem
Technelogies.

Created in 2008, it designs, displays and operates a unique live TV broadcast technology in order 1o ensure the
event broadcasting (more than 60 stadiums, as well as other major transmitting places are already connected to the
high speed network).

This entity 100% owned by TDF SAS is fully consolidated in TDF Infrastructure SAS financial consolidated
statements.

At March 31, 2015, Group goodwill breaks down by CGU or group of GGUs as follows:

g i.n ) g v i,n Currency Reclassifi-
P . [—— March 2014 consolidation tmipairment consoiidation e e ca P o March 2015

“?’F?e_ i bagacs . B adjustment agllocation

acguisitions disposails / IFRS

France 1 613 446 {8 523) 1 604 923
Allemagne 372 482 {372 488) - =
Arkena AB (ex Obrick) 2 520 (2 444) . (16 4
Bebanjn 392 {392) - =
Autres {*} 17 164 = = 3 = 17 164
Total 2 006 010 {2 836; (381 011) (76} - 1622 Q87

) the CGL “Others” aggregates: Finland, Poland, and Esfonia.

Concerning the CGU Germany, the change corresponds to the disposal of German entities (see note 6.1},
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A. Impairment test at December 31, 2015
In compliance with 1AS36, the Group has performed an impairment test of goodwill at the December closing date.

According to Group management, business plans of the various CGUs are annually revised and approved by the
shareholders. To determine the recoverable amounts of each CGU used for the impairment test, the Group relied
on the latest business plans approved by the shareholders on November 25, 2015.

Cne of the major changes compared to the March 31, 2015 business plans is related to Television activity of TDF
CGU and concerns the « second digital dividend » and the CSA final decisions (French TV and radio regulatory
body) about the two muitiplex R5 and R8 shutdown early April 2016 (see also notes 15 and 18).

B. [Impairment test at March 31, 2015

In compliance with 1AS36, the Group has performed an impairment test of goodwill at the reporting date of the
period 2014/2015.

So as to determine recoverable values of CGU used for the impairment tests, the Group relied on business plans of
the various CGUs or groups of CGUs which were used by the new shareholders to evaluate the acquisition of the
Group as of March 31, 2015.

On France and Others CGUs, taking into account those business plan doesn't lead to any impairment. However on
Arkena AB {ex Qbrick) and Bebanjo CGUs, the new business plans implied the recognition of additional impairment,
on top of those already recognized at March 31, 2014 (total depreciation of goodwills for an amount of €2.8m, of
all intangible and tangible assets).

Also regardless of impairment tests led on the basis of business plans, the transaction and the change of
shareholders on March 31, 2015 also lead to the conclusion that it is not necessary to recognize any additional
impairment on the CGUs France and Others.

C. Assumptions underlying the impairment tesis as of the reporting date

Recoverable Discounting

Projected Long term
Dec 2015 value based {?:i;di rates row?h "
on Bl (WACC) e

. : ;

TD¥ i i years | 7.5% | 175%

{ Walue in use i . i ]

Arkena ' o o 5 years % 10.0% i 155%

Médiamobile ; discounted 5years | 100% 1 175%
: ¢ cash flows | N 1

Levira : 5 years i 120% | 1,75%

Recovarable i Discounting
P ted Long term
March 2015 Y e - r?ejr?cc)di e rtfw?h rates
on = AWACC) e

H 1

France f | 7.5% 2,0%
. Walue inuse ! |

Arkena AB {ex Qbrickd . hased on i 11.5% | 2.0%
) | 10 years | i

Bebanjo discounted | 125% | 20%
cash flows : !

Dithars : 9.5% i 2.0%

The discount rate corresponds to the weighted average cost of capital, determined on the basis of observable
market data, in particular a sample of comparable listed companies carrying on business as operators in the fields
of satellites and telephone, radio or television infrastructures/networks, The rate is an after-tax rate applied to the
cash flows after tax,
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D. Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis was carried out on the key assumptions (+ or — 0.5 bp. on discount rate, + or - 0.5 bp. on
growth rate to infinity and + or — 1.0 bp. on the EBITDA margin terminal value) both individually and using a
combination of scenarios.

At December 31, 2015 reasonable potential changes in key assumptions listed above would have no impairment
impact on TDF, Arkena and Médiamobile CGUs.

Only on Levira CGU, changes in key assumptions would have increase or decrease as follows:

in million euros Levira Long term growth rates
-0,5 point +0,5 point
Discounting -0,5 point - s s
rates sa e -
(WACC) +0.,5 point 0.4} -- --
in mitlion euros Levira EBITDA margin rate
-1.0 point +1,0 point
Discounting -0,5 point s o --
rates {0,2) — -
(Waco) +0,5 point {0,5) -- —

At March 31, 2015 reasonable potential changes in key assumptions listed above:

- would have no impairment impact on France and Others CGU goodwills,

- would not lead to any reduction of impairment or additional impairment charges concerning goodwills of
Arkena AB (ex Qbrick} CGU and Bebanjo CGU, as their goodwill are totally depreciated at March 31, 2015.

9.2 intangible assets

Intangible assets are analyzed below:

Capitalized
development

Customer

in Housands euros . tease right Backlog i Cthers Total
expenditure retationship
& Patents
Gross value at March 31, 2614 96 657 285 143 247 300 344 916 274 482 1 248 498
Acquisitions 1589 - = - 23 832 25 42%
Disposals - & = (G0 {9 017}
Reclassifications 2812 - - s (2421 191
Changes ir consolidation scope = {285 143) {48 B00) (58 200) (41 238} {433 383}
Currency translation adjustments {188} - 494) “Ahy {727
Gross vatue at March 31, 2015 100 670 - 198 500 286 222 245 593 830G 985
Acquisitions 157 - = 12 097 12 254
Disposals (247) (i T35 {1 380)
Reciassifications 4 149 s (3932 217
Changes in consotidation scope = - 285 285
Currency transtation gdiusiments 3 = 4 {2 [4:3]
Gross value at December 31, 2015 104 732 - 198 500 286 218 252 902 842 352

Changes in consolidation scope from March to December 2015 is linked to AD Valem Technologies acquisition (see
note 1) and changes during 2014-2015 correspond to the disposal of German entities (see note 7.1).
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Order backlog and customer relationships

During the purchase price allocation process, the Group recorded order backlog, which is amortized over the
average term of the contracts per business {between 4 and 14 years) and customer relations, which are amortized

over periods ranging from 6 to 22 years.

“QOthers”

It includes:

- €143.7m of software (€137.0m at March 31, 2015),

- €28.8m of trademarks with an indefinite life (gross value, same as March 31, 2015),
- €34.7m concerning a technology recognized during purchase price allocation (unchanged since March 31,

2015).

Intangible assets accumulated amortization and impairment is broken down as follows:

Capitalized
In thousarnds euros developl_ment Lease right Backlog Cus,mmefr Others Total
axpenditure reiationship
2 Patents
Amortization at March 31, 2014 {58 886) ({177827) 231989} {1i05461) (145 936) (740 149}
{Charge of the period {13 462 {28 618} 7559 (L2 80.2) (29 402) {88 B23)
fHsposals = 9015 2015
Reclassifications & = 245 248
Changes in consolidation scope o 206 445 43 639 22 500 24 112 296 628
Currency translation adjustments 105 = a 150 255
Amortization at March 31, 2015 {69 243) - {195 889) {95 G12) (162013} (522 758)
Charge of the period {9 537} (2 350) 6 256} {5 123 (33 275
Disposals 247 E 1607 1254
Raeclassifications Iis = - 119
Changes in consalidation scope = {265) {265)
Currency ranstation adjustmants & = = 6 ik
Amortization at Dacember 31, 2015 {78 419) - {198 239) {101 869 (176 397) (554 924}
Capitalized
development lLeasa right Backiog Cu:\.:_tome.r Others Total
expenditure ’ relalionship
& Patents
impairment losses at March 31, 2014 - - - {106 246) {9 909) (116 855)
Charge of the period (< 816} - {5172) {6 491) (18 479)
Changes in consolidation scope = - 71l 4 554 11 865
Currency translation adiustments 19 & = bl <) 277
Impairment losses at March 31, 2015 {2 797} - - {108 752) {11 843) (123 392}
Charge of the period 2 780 = bl 2l 4699
Currency transiation adiusiments 17 = = 2 4 24
impairment losses at December 31, 2015 - - - (108 749} {(2920) {118 669)
Carrying amount at March 31, 2014 44 395 135 934 3% 597 172 637 1901 924 490 487
Carrying amount at March 31, 2015 28 630 - 2611 81 857 71737 184 835
Carrying amount at December 31, 2015 26 313 : 261 75 600 66 585 168 759
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Impairment of intangible assets

Intangible asset impairment is detailed below:

Other

in thousands euros France y Total
Countries
Trademarks with indefinite Lves - = =
Backlog ¢ - 4
Cther intangible assets = 4 699 4699
Total December 31, 2015 - 4 699 4 639
in thousands auros France Germany g Othe,{ Total
Cauntries
Trademarks with indefinite tHves - 4 108 = 4 160)
Backlog 3 3 a -
Other intangibie assetls = {7 363} {6 814} {14 379)

E

Totat March 31, 2015 (11 663) (6 814} {18 479)

Trademarks with an indefinite life are subject to an annual impairment test.

The following were the main assumptions used as of December 31, 2015:

France
Recoverable vatue based on ) Fair value
Valuation Method MBME’X?J}},%M
Projected periods 10 ans
Discount rates 7.50%
Long term growth rates 1,75%
Rovalty rate on the revenues 0,306%

The net book value of trademarks with indefinite lives amounts to €23.0m (for France, Germany was sold).
Sensitivity analysis carried out showed that any deterioration in the key criteria would not lead to further
impatrment.

December 31, 2015

In December, thanks to the improvement of growth forecasts and profitability of Arkena AB (Sweden) and Bebanjo,
part of the intangible assets impairments recorded in March 2015 (see details below) was written off over the
period notably:

- €3.4m concerning Arkena AB (the customer relationship impairment has not been written off),

- €1.3m concerning Bebanjo (all of the impairment booked in March 2015).

March 31, 2015

lmpatrments of this financial year correspond to:
Depreciations of intangible assets concerning Bebanjo {€1.3m), and Arkena AB and its subsidiaries (€5.5m,
of which €2.1m concerning a2 new and final depreciation of Arkena AB customer relationship), due to a
detericration of growth and cash flows forecasts.
- €11.7m of depreciations in Germany (disposed of on March 31, 2015), following changes in forecasted cash
flows on some activities.

At March 31, 2015 accumulated impairment on other intangible assets includes €5.8m related to trademarks and
€1.4m related to software.
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9.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is analyzed below:

Office
Land &  Broadcastin  furniture, )
I thousands ewros bafidings gnetwork  office and Others Total
cormputer
Gross value at March 31, 2014 634 871 1 812 733 97 198 502 865 3 047 667
Acquisitions 2, B85 58 390 6519 111 659 128 403
Sorties {1700) {37 ©44) {6 565} (13175} {59 388)
Reclassifications 8356 14 084 1123 {12 354} 3 689
Changes in consolidation scope {25 174} {341 246) (33 350 {78 415) {548 185)
Currengy translation adjustments .5 68 {68) 322 337
Gross value at March 31, 2015 560 1582 1 506 585 64 853 510 902 2642 523
Acquisitions 16 476 25903 1560 35 135 72076
Sorties {2 958) (20 954} {5 713} {9 172} {38 797
Reclassifications 143 3837 4 {1 065} 2919
Changes in consolidation scepe 1000 5183 595 - 6778
Currency transtation adjustments {26} i) {30} {84} {257}
Gross value at December 31, 2015 574 818 1 520 437 61 269 535718 2 692 242
o Office
in thousands euros L"’,‘“‘?’ & Brasduein furniture, Others Total
huildings g network
office and
Amortization at March 31, 2014 {215 664) {929 266) {75 358) (274 008) (1 494 296)
Charge of the period (19 409) {99 803) {7 781) {32 654} {159 647)
Disposals 97% 37 827 6 486 13075 58 362
Reclassifications 950 3585 30 {1 990} 8 575
Changes in consolidation scope 14 206 216230 21 014 5425 261 875
Currency translation adiustments {13} {55} 43 {242} (267)
Amortization at March 31, 2015 {213 855) (765 482) (55 566} (290 394) (1 325 297)
Charge of the period (16 652) {57 792) (3 327) {25 947) {103 718)
Disposais 1783 20934 5 582 Y D85 37 384
Reclassifications 1 785 3 e42) - 12 {1 845}
Changes in consolidation scope {147} (2 920} 492} 2 {3 559
Currency translation adjusiments 27 a6 i 72 207
Amortization at December 31, 2015 {227 064} (808 806) (53 786) (307 172) (1 396 828}
Office
Land &  Broadcastin  furniture,
puildings ¢ network  office and i Tt
computer
impairment losses at March 31, 2014 {48 983) (28 559) {8} {4 003} {81 553)
Charge of the period 4 287 (17 661) 2 282) (30) {25 260)
Changes in consolidation scope 46 665 Qu7a 2 807 = 58 546
Currency translation adjustments 2 (3} 3 {2} (2)
impairment losses at March 31, 2015 {6 605) (37 149) {480) {4 035) {48 269)
Charge of the period 17 - 469 24 520
Disposals = 11 11
Currency translation adjustments = 5 3 & 14
Impairment losses at December 31, 20153 {6 588} (37 133) {8) (3995 {47 724}
Carrying amount at March 31, 2014 370 224 854 908 21 832 224854 1471818
Carrying amount at March 31, 2615 339723 703 854 8 807 216 473 1 268 957
Carrying amount at December 31, 2615 341 166 674 498 7475 224 551 1 247 690
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Broadcasting networks comprise pylons, antennas, transmitters, microwave links and site fixtures, satellite
equipment (terrestrial stations), pre-broadcasting equipment for master control rooms. "Other” includes vehicles,
equipped vehicles and assets in progress.

The gross value of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases {group as lessee} and included in non-
current assets amounts to €28.2m (same as March 31, 2015). It mainly consists of DVRN towers rented from Orange
and a car fleet. Accumulated depreciation regarding those assets amounts to €17.1m (€16.2m as of March 31,
2015).

The Group does not lease any of its assets to third parties under finance leases (group as lessor).

December 31, 2015

Changes in consolidation scope correspond to AD Valem Technologies acquisition (see note 1).

March 31, 2015

Changes in consolidation scope mainly correspond to the disposal of German enitities (see the note 7.1).

2.4 Financial assets available for sale

in thousands suros Dec 2015 March 2015

Gross value at opening 463 840
Acquisitions 315 25
Disposals 2 B32y

Currency translation adjustments =
Fair value AFS = o

Changes in consolidation scope - 230
Gross value at closing (A} 778 463
Impairment at opening (230) -
Acguisitions = {2303
Reversal 30 =

Currency translation adjustments
Changes in consolidation scope - '

Impairment at closing {B} - {230)

Net carrying amount at closing 778 233

Financial assets avallable for sale mainly comprise the Group's investment in non-consclidated companies.

9.5 Inventories

Dec 2013 March 2015
in thousands euros Gross Depreciation Net Gross  Depreciation MNet
inventories including items in progress 6 300 {2 276) 4024 6183 2 281) 3902
Total inventories 6 300 {2 276) 4 024 6 183 {2 281} 3 902

Inventories are essentially composed of spare parts for which use (consumption, capitalization or sale) is not pre-
specified. They mainly concern TDF SAS.

Inventories are measured at weighted average unit purchase cost. Where the future use of an inventory item is
uncertain, it is subject to an impairment adjustment, if necessary, to reduce its carrying value to its recoverable
amount,

Assets that qualify as safety inventories are accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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9.6 Trade receivables and other current and non-current assets

Dec 2015 March 2015
In thousands suros Gross Daepreciation Net Gross  Depreciation MNet
Trade accounts receivabies 138 748 {11 747 127 001 237 BBO (8147 209 733
Trade receivalbles on disposal of assets 736 54 584 736 %23 684
Total trade accounts receivabigs 139 484 {11 799) 127 685 218 616 {8 199) 210 417

Trade receivables impairment is based on the probability of bad debts.

The breakdown of past due amounts on trade receivables are as follows:

March
Dec 2015
2015
MNei hat
Not yet due 52636 182 625
Less than 3 months past due 31 956 20 335
More Lhan 3 months and less than 1 year past ®30) 1618
due
HMore than one year and less than 2 years 758 4014
past due
More than 3 yvears past due 1 BE5 1625
MNet trade account receivables 127 685 210 417
Qther current and non-current assets are as follows:
Dec 2015 March 2015
I thousands euros Gross Depraciation Net Gross  Depreciation Net
Credit notes not yet received 70 = 70 FieT & 257
Advance payment - corporaia income tax 1496 - 1496 443 = 443
Tax and social security receivables 43 667 3 43 687 36 003 - 36 003
Prepaid expenses 1808 : 1 808 10378 5 10378
Escrow account 5 = ) 146 . 148
Olher recelvables 24 214 973 22 17 723854 | 23 224
Total other current assats 71 264 {97y 71 187 71 186 {(735) 70 451
Non-current receivables 4 069 2 4 069 198 - 158
Loans, security deposit, guaranty 8 767 (320} 8 447 18 895 - 18 895
Total other non current assets 12 836 (320) 12 51& 19 (93 - 19093

9.7 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group’s cash is largely denominated in euros

Please note that opening and closing cash & cash equivalents include cash & cash equivalents from discontinued

or held for sale activities, and from disposed entities:

Restated
In thousands euros Dec 2015 March 2015
Cash and cash eguivatent of continuing aclivities 145 041 60 474
Cash and cash equivalent of discontinued or held for sale activities 32 44
Closing cash & cash equivalents 145 073 66 518
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10. Notes on the balance sheet: equity and liabilities

Except for deferred taxes that are classified as non-current assets or liabilities, assets and liabilities are classified as
current when the amounts are expected to be recovered or settled no more than 12 months after the reporting
date. If this is not the case, they are classified as non-current.

General comments:
o Assets and liabilities of German entities, sold on March 31, 2015, no longer appear,
o Assets and liabilities of MCR are reclassified on “Assets/Liabilities held for sale and discontinued
operations” since March 31, 2015 (see note 7.2} ;
« March 2015 figures are restated from the impacts linked to the application of IFRIC 21 (please refer to note
41},

10.1 Share capital and reserves

Transactions on capital

On April 10, 2015, three operations occurred on the capital of TDF Infrastructure SAS:

- Statutory retained earnings were partly reclassified against share premium (additional paid-in capital) for
an amount of € 1,511,157 thousand, bringing the amount of the share premium account {in equity) to zero,

- a share capital reduction of the Company was made for an amount of €149,996 thousand, with counterpart
retained earnings, bringing the total share capital to €599,983 thousand,

- an increase of share capital for €272,240 thousand (combined with a share premium for €544,480
thousand), fully subscribed by TDF infrastructure Holding and entirely released by offsetting a loan owned
by TDF (iLe. €815m of shareholder loan plus its accrued interests for €1 719m as of April 10" 2015 were
capitalized, see also notes 5.3 and 10.2). The share capital then amounts to €872,223 thousand.

Also, on July 10, 2015, it was decided:
- to decrease the share capital by €572,223 thousand, to bring it from €872,223 thousand to €300,000
thousand through a reduction of the nominal value of the shares ;
- to allocate this decrease to a non-distributable share premium account.
The final completion of this share capital decrease was recognized on September 2, 2015.

Thus, after these steps described above:
- the share capital of TDF Infrastructure SAS decreases from €749,979 thousand to €300,000 thousand,
- the share premiums (additional paid-in capital) decrease from €1,511157 thousand to €1,116,703
thousand,
- the Group's debt (including accrued interest) decreases by €816,720 thousand.

Finally, on May 29, 2015, in order to simplify the capital structure of TDF SAS Infrastructure, the preference shares
categories Al, A2 and B were converted into ordinary shares on the basis of a conversion ratio of one ordinary
share for one preference share. Then the ordinary shares were consolidated by exchange of all existing ordinary
shares against 10.000.000 new ordinary shares.

Change of direct and indirect shareholders

On April 10, 2015, TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS has acquired all the shares of TDF Infrastructure SAS (ordinary
shares, preference shares, ABSA, BSA) that were owned by Tivana France Holdings, Tower Associes SAS, Tower
Associés 2 SAS and Colisée Management SAS, so that as of April 10, 2015, TDF Infrastructure SAS has only cne
shareholder {which is TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS).

Direct holding at Dec 2015 March 2015
TDF In'Frast‘rL‘Jclture Holding SAS (former 100,00% 99.66%
Tyrol Acguisition 1 SAS)
Tower Associés SAS 0 164%
Tower Associgs 2 SAS 0,01%
Colisée Managemeant SAS 0,09%
Tivana France Holdings 018%
Total 100,00% 100,00%
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TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS is 100% owned by the French company Tivana France Holdings SAS since March
31% 2015, which is itself directly or indirectly owned by the following shareholders (slight change during the period
with the incoming of Predica):

indirect holding at Dec 2015 March 2015
Brookfield infrastructure Group 4500% 50,00%
Public Sector Pension Invesiment Board 2250% 25.00%
(PSP Investments)

APG Asset Management PNV, 2250% 25,00%
Pl'é\r?ya r:ce Dialogue du Credit Agricole - 10,00%
Pradica 5A

Total 190,00% 100,00%

Consolidated reserves

A. Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve comprises the total of accumulated exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the Group’s foreign operations and of financial liabilities designated as
hedges of net investments in foreign operations.

B. Cash flow hedging reserve

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative portion of gains and losses on cash flow hedging
instruments that have been deemed effective. It's null as of December 31, 2015 as well as March 31, 2015, because
the Group doesn't have any hedging instruments,

C. Other reserves

Gther reserves include:
- The net accumulated change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets until they are written off
or impaired;
- The reserve for treasury shares,
- The reserve for actuarial differences ;
- Changes in consolidation scope relating to changes in minority interests.
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10.2 Financial debt

As of December 31, 2015, the main part of financial debt consists of unsecured senior external debt held by bank
lenders (bank debt) and bonds as well as a shareholder loan.

Globally the Group's financial debt [s analyzed and has varied as described below:

In thousands euros March 2015 Increase Decrease Qthers Dec 2015
Bond deft - 5692 594 167 - 597 761
including ierm debt 600 000 = = GO0 064
including igan ssuance costs 3 {7 406} 167 - (7238
Bank debt S YAD = = 802 321
includling {oan (ssuance costs fi4 £58) (1 471) Il 350 4 973
including torm debt I 44 000 {523 000} - 807 (6}

incliuding revolving debt 306000 (30 200) S

Shareholders' debt 1 338 692 3 = 5, 099) 1063 599
Finance lease debt £ 179 1572 (2 137) 90 6 904
Other financial debts 563 27 884 {93%) 1 B33 29 348
Financial debt 3 261 182 28 456 {3 063} {772 576) 2 494 633
In thousarnds of euros March 2014 ircregse Decrease Others #March 2015
Sank dabt 3 FRA 843 1 445 147 (3832 781 37 938 1415 142
inciuding lodan issuance costs 457 i BEE} I 457 - {14 853)
inciuding term debit 3568 300 1480 004 (3 504 238 37 938 1400 ocg
including revoling delt LS00 GO0 G0 OG0 (230 200} = 20 000
Shareholders' debt - 1838 pOB - - 1 838 698
Tax group convention debt 445 578 74117 - (569 691} ’
Finance lease dakbt 124 503 #1886 33 B7 3} {86 035! 6779
Other financial debts 7i8 193 45 314 44 966 563
Fimancial debt 4 38% 41 3 360 331 {3 911 968) (572 822} 3 261 182

Bond debt

On October 19, 2015, TDF Infrastructure SAS issued a bond for €600.0m (whose characteristics are presented in
note 5.4}.

The loan issue expenses (including issue discount) disclosed as a deduction from the debt balance {according to
effective interest rate IFRS method) are estimated at €7.4m.

Bank debt

As of December 31, 2015, bank term debt amounts to €807.0m. Decrease over the period is related to the advance
payment of €593.0m on the tranche A on October 19, 2015, foltowing the bond issuance (see above}.

Borrowing issue costs disclosed as a deduction from the debt balance amount to €5.0 as at December 31, 2015,
and correspond to the new borrowing issue costs that have been activated on March 31, 2015 under the effective
interest rate IFRS method (former borrowing issue costs related to the fermer senior bank debt have been fully
amortized on March 31, 2015).

The partial repayment of Tranche A for €593.0m resulted in an immediate additional depreciation of €3.6m of the
loan issue expenses,

The revelving debt usable for an amount of €250m has been drawn down for an amount of €30m on March 31,
2015. It was totally repaid on April 21, 2015,
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As of March 31, 2015, change in the bank term debt is mainly explained by the refinancing of the whole debt of the
Group that occurred on March 31, 2015, which implied:
- the repayment of all debts (plus interests) related to the bank agreement implemented in July 2007, that is
a repayment of €3 356.7m,
- the setup of the new bank agreement: €1 400m of bank term debt drawn (excluding borrowing issue costs
of €14.9m).
Note that €40.5m of senior debt of the former bank agreement {terminated on March 31, 2015, see note 4.4) was
repaid during the second half year of the previous period, prior to the refinancing of March 31, 2015.

Besides the €37.9m movement in "Others" as of March 31, 2015 correspond to the capitalization of "Pay in Kind"
interest on senicr debt that was negotiated in the former bank agreement. These capitalization transactions were
agreed under the July 2011 refinancing operation.

Cash convention debt related to tax consolidation

Financial debts related to the cash convention within the tax group consolidation agreement (€495.6 M at March
31, 2014) are due to TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS, main shareholder of the TDF Infrastructure SAS group and the
head of the tax consolidation until March 31, 2015 gathering TDF Infrastructure SAS, TDF SAS, Smartiog France, and
Arkena SAS. Under this agreement, TDF Infrastructure SAS collected on behalf of TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS
the tax instalments and payments of member companies of the tax group, and a debt towards TDF Infrastructure
Helding SAS is thus generated.

This tax consolidation agreement had a nature of current account, and was subject to the provisions of Article
39.1.3 ° of the General Tax Code, so that an interest corresponding to the annual average of the average effective
rates applied by credit institutions for floating rate loans {with an initial term of over two years} is due.

This debt was entirely capitalized (including accrued interests) on March 31, 2015 for €584.2m, in the context of
impacts brought forth by the change of shareholders. The counterpart is an increase of the share capital of TDF
Infrastructure SAS.

After the creation of the new tax consolidation group on April 1, 2015, headed by Tivana France Holdings SAS,
single shareholder of TDF Infrastructure holding SAS since March 31, 2015, this cash convention expired.

Shareholders loans

Two new shareholders debts were drawn on March 31, 2015:

- €815m corresponding to the new loan towards TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS (fixed interest rate of 7.7%).
This loan was completely capitalized on April 10, 2015; with counterpart the equity (see also note 10.1) for
a total amount of €816.7m;

- €1,023.7m corresponding to a new loan directly contracted with Tivana France Holdings (new shareholder
of TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS; fixed interest rate of 7,7%, 10 years maturity, and the borrower also has
an extension option). Interests on this loan were capitalized for €39.9m over the period. This loan thus
amounts €1 063.6m as of December 31, 2015.

Other financial debts
Other financial debts of €29.3 at December 31, 2015 (March 31, 2015: £€0.6m) correspond to:

- Current accounts with Tivana France Holdings and TDF Infrastructure Holding for a total amount of €25.7m;
- Third party payables for operating capex purchase, equity investments and commercial partnerships.
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Financial debt (excluding accrued interests) is analyzed by maturity below:

in thousands euros Dec 2015 < Lyear 1to5years > 35 years
Bond debt 592 761 o - ER2°7el
Bank deist 802 (21 = 802021 -
Sharehoiders' debt 1063 599 - - 1063 599
Finance lease debt 6904 2 416 4 258 230
Other financizl debts 29 348 26 AG2 Z 946 -
financial debt 2494 633 28 818 809 225 1 656 550
In thousands euros March 2015 < 1l year 1to5years > 5years
Banrk debt 1415 142 30 0G0 1385142 -
Shateholders” debt 1 838 698 815 000 1023 6598
Firance lease delit & 779 2 563 4 216 -
Other financial debts 563 el 492 -
Financial debt 3 261 182 847 534 1 389 850 10623 698

As of December 31, 2015:
- The shareholder debt, €1 063.6m at closing, bears 7.7% fixed rate interests and the maturity is 10 years, Le.
March 21, 2025 {and the borrower also has an extension option);

- The bank debt of € 807.00m (excluding loan expenses) bears variable interest rates and breaks down as

follows:

o €107.0m tranche A for which contractual maturity is November 6, 2017,

o £700.0m tranche B for which contractual maturity is November 6, 2019,

- €600.0m of bond debt (excluding loan expenses), with a fixed coupon of 2.875 % and 7 years maturity Le.
October 19, 2022.

10.3 Description of debt

The characteristics of the new bank debt implemented on March 31, 2015 are summarized in the table below:

mitiak Arhount Bepending a.?.1 the Greup's Margin applied ta EURIBOR Matugity
amgount due at rating
fer rdfions euros : .
Dac 2015 R sap Lhntik Utk il Lintil Until
¥ 06/11/15 08/11/16 06/11/17 06/11/18 06/11/19
Farm dabi
Baa? or above  BBBE or above 0,65% 0.80% 1.25% BiA, MA
Tranche A 7000 107.0 Bazd BHRB- 4,80% 1,00% 1,40% A BA Bnov.-17
Betow Baal Beiow BRS- Marge Baa3/BBB- plus {i,75%
BaaZ or above  BBE or above 0,65% 0,80% 135% 1,60% 2,00%
Tranche B 7000 TO0.8 Baaz BBE- 0.B0% LOO% 150% 1,75% 215% G-nov-i2
Below Baal Below BEB- Marge Baa3/BBE- plus 0,75%
TOTAL term debt 1 403,83 807,83
BaaZ or above  BBR o7 above 1,00%
Revoiving Facility 25040 Bau3 ERE- 1 5% f-nov.-19
Beiow Baal Below BEB- Marge Baa3/BEBE- plus 0,75%
TOTAL Revolving debt 250,0
TOTAL FA debt 16500 807,0
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The refinancing performed by TDF Infrastructure SAS on March 31, 2015 is ruled by the following contracts:

"Facilities Agreement” signed on November 6, 2014 and amended on March 26, 2015 between Tivana Topco
S.A., Tivana Midco S.arl,, Tivana France Holdings SAS, as parent companies and joint guarantors, and TDF
Infrastructure SAS (which entered into the contract on March 31, 2015), as borrower and joint guarantor, BNP
Paribas SA, Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, Lloyds Bank plc, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc,
Société Générale Corporate & Investment Banking, acting as mandated arrangers, BNP Paribas SA, as Facility
Agent, Security Agent and the lenders named therein (the "Senior Credit Agreement"), which object is the
establishment of senior credit lines for an initial principal amount of €1.650.000.000 ; in accordance with the
contract, TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS and TDF SAS entered into the contract on June 29, 2015 ; finally all
commitments given by Tivana Topco S.A, Tivana Midco Sarl, Tivana France Holdings SAS terminated on
October 19, 2015 following the bond issue ; TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS's commitments terminated on
November 12, 2015 ;

« Intercreditor Agreement » signed November 6, 2014 between notably Tivana Topco 5.A, Tivana Midco S.ar.l,
Tivana France Holdings SAS, as parent companies and joint guarantors, and after accession TDF Infrastructure
SAS, as borrower and joint guarantor, BNP Paribas SA, Crédit Agricol Corporate and Investment Bank, Lloyds
Bank plc, The Royal Bank of Scotland plc, Société Générale Corporate & Investment Banking, acting as
mandated arrangers, BNP Paribas SA, as Facility Agent, Security Agent, the Senior lenders parties to the Credit
Senior Agreement and certain banks as Hedge Counterparts, under which are in particular determined the
conditions of subordinaticn and ranking between creditors of Tivana Topco S.A, Tivana Midco S.a rl,, Tivana
France Holdings SAS, TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS, TDF infrastructure SAS and TDF SAS |

These credit lines include:
- afacility A, with 3 year initial length {(maturing on November 6, 2017), amounting to €700m, and partially
repaid for €593.0m over the periad,
- afacility B, with 5 years initial length (maturing on November 6, 2019}, amounting to €700m
- arevolving credit line, with 5 years initial length {(maturing on November 6, 2019), amounting to €250m

The revolving credit line can be used to cover the general needs of the Group, including repayment of the former
revolving debt in the frame of the refinancing, acquisitions, capital expenditure, working capital and distribution to
shareholders.

This debt has variable interest rates. Interests periods are 1 month, 2 months, 3 months or 6 months, the period
length being freely chosen by the borrower depending on its own needs (except under certain circumstances such
as debt syndication).

As disclosed in the table above, margins applied to Euribor increase as time goes by, and also depend on the
Group's rating as determined by rating agencies {or one of them).

These facilities are subject to compliance with a ratio and commitments set contractually (see note 5.4). This ratio
and these commitments will be tested twice a year, starting on June 3G, 2015.

10.4 Characteristics of derivative instruments

Interests on the debt before hedging is calculated based on Euribor (1, 3, 6 months) plus a margin, as described in
note 10.3.

At December 31, 2015 as well as at March 31, 2015 no derivative instrument is in place.
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10.5 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are provided through both defined contribution and defined benefit plans. Under a defined
contribution plan, the Group is only obliged to pay contributions. Contributions paid in respect of these plans are
recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Post-employment benefit plans

Defined benefit plans are subject to actuarial measurement using the projected unit credit method. Under the
projected unit credit method, each period of service gives rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and each
unit is measured separately to build up the final liability, which is then discounted.

These actuarial calculations include demographic assumptions (retirement date, rate of increase in salaries, rate of
employee turnover, etc.) and financial assumptions (discount rate, rate of inflation) defined at the level of each
entity taking into account the local macroeconomic environment.

All actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Termination benefits

Where applicable, benefits arising from the termination of an employment contract are measured and provided for
to the extent of the resulting liability. Where termination benefits fall due more than 12 months after the reporting
date, they are discounted to present value.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term obligations are not discounted and are recognized when the corresponding service is rendered.

Share-based payments

If payment results in the delivery of equity instruments, the fair value of share-based payments at the grant date is
recognized as a personnel expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the pericd during which the
equity instruments vest in favor of the employees.

If payment results in a cash settlement, the fair value of amounts due to employees is recognized as a personnel
expense, with a corresponding increase in financial liabilities over the period in which the rights vest. The fair value
of this liability is revalued each year.

A. Post-employment benefits

The amounts shown In the balance sheet essentially concern the provision for retirement indemnities, as follows:

Iy thousands euros Dec 2015 March 2015
Prasent value of the defined renefit obligation 38081 BERs)
Falr value of plan assets {18 99 (18 551)
Provision recognised for defined benefit obligations 19 091 20 970

The time schedule of expected discounted cash flows on these provisions is as follows:

in thousand euro Dec 2015 < 1 year 1 to 5 years > 5 years

Frange 19083 - 777 18 306
Others B E . 5

Provision recognised for

defined benefit obligations 19 @31 3 & ko

The main employee benefit plans concern retirement benefits in France.

Retirement benefits are valued based on a collective workforce agreement or a company agreement and the legal
age of retirement is assumed to be 65 years.
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TDF, TDF Infrastructure SAS and Smartlog France, representing 92% of benefit obligations in France as of
December 31, 2015, apply the National Tetecommunication Collective Agreement and no company agreement may
override this agreement. Under the collective agreement, the retirement benefit paid out equals statutory
severance pay (based on the employee’s length of service and last salary prior to retirement} or if more favorable
for the employee, the retirement benefit is based on the following calculation:

- 20% of gross annual salary after 10 years length of service,
- 40% of gross annual salary after 20 years length of service,
- 60% of gross annual salary after 30 years length of service.

Arkena SAS {ex Cognacq Jay Images), representing 7% of benefit obligations in France as of December 31, 2015
applies a specific company agreement. The retirement benefit is based on the employee length of service:
- Between 2 and 10 years, allocation of 1/8th month per year of service for non-executives and 1/7" month

for executives,

- Over 10 years, allocation of 2/8" month per year of service for the non-executives and 2/7

executives.

The change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation is analyzed below:

th

in thousands euros Dec 2015 March 2015
Present value of the dafined benefit obligation at opening 39521 56 94D
Service cost 1405 2679
Deliverad services {226} 978
Discounting (interast cost) 368 1.576
Actuartal gains andd losses recognised in the stalement of comprehensive ingn {2 987 12 297
Changes in consolidation scope (32 991}
Others . {2)
Present value of the defined benefit obligation at closing 33 081 39 521
Dec 2015 March 2015
Fair value of plan assets at opening 18 551 18 276
Contribution paid into the plan i .
fanefits paid (221) (3471
Expected return on plan assets 689 628
Actuarial gains and losses (by net equity) (29 {6}
Changes in consclidation scope = -
Fair value of plan assets at closing 18 990 18 551
in thousands euros Dec 2415 March 2015
Personnel costs {service cost} {1 400} {2 048}
Discounting {interest cost) (368) {1 576)
Expected return on plan assets 689 628
Others (restructuring provision, others..) 2
Expense in the year {1 079} {2 994)
Actuarial gains/losses recognized in other comprehensive income before tax:
In thousands euros Dec 2015 March 201%
Cumulative amount at Ist aprid 12 540 {263}
Expartence adjustment arizing an plan liabilities - {1 271}
Experience adjustment arising on plan assets o 6
Adjustement from changes in assumptions {3 000} 13 568
Cumulative amount at closing date 9 069 12 040

manth for the
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The main actuarial assumptions for this obligation liability are as follows:

Dec 2015 March 2015
e 2,00% 0,94% - 1,25%
Expecied rates of salary increases 100% - 2,00% 0% - 2,80%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 200% - 3,70% 209% - 3,46%

The sensitivity of actuarial calculations to the discounting rate and the expected rate of return on plan assets at

December 31, 2015 is presented below:

in M€
-0,5 pt 214
Discount Rate 191
5058t 16,9

The sensitivity of actuarial calculations to the discounting rate and the expected rate of return on plan assets at

March 31, 2015 is presented below:

fn M€
-0,5 pt 23,8
Taux 1.0
d'actualisation R
+0.5 pt 18,5

The underlying assets of employee benefit plans in France amount to €19.0m as of December 31, 2015, and
correspond to a group insurance contract with a private insurer. The average expected return is the same as the

insurer's return on its "Actif Général Retraite” (General Retirement Asset).
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A provision is recognized when:
- there exists a current, legal or implicit, obligation arising from a past event,
- it is likely that an outflow of resources representing economic benefits will be required in order to
discharge this obligation, and
- the value of the obligation can be estimated with a sufficient degree of reliability.

Such obligations may be of a legal, regulatory, technical or contractual nature. They may also stem from the
Group's practices or public commitments that have given rise to legitimate expectations on the part of the third
partles concerned that the Group will assume certain responsibilities.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the outflow of economic benefits required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, If the value cannot be estimated reliably, no provision is recognized.
The obligation is then disclosed as a contingent liability (see note 15.1).

As of March 31, 2015, "Other provisions" mainly corresponds to the disposal of German entities and of their related
provisions from the Group balance sheet (see note 7.1}, for an amount of €55.8m.

Employee-related measures

On December 17, 2014, TDF SAS management has presenied to the workers councils the strategic directions of the
company. On April 16, 2015, a process was initiated in order to inform and consult the Works council, so as to
present the consequences of these strategic directions on employment and to start the negotiations concerning
employee-related measures to be taken to support the leaves necessary to adjust the workforce (stabilized
workforce between 1220 and 1260 employees of TDF SAS to be reached in December 2017). An agreement was
signed on July 23, 2015. As of today, the best estimate of costs to be incurred for these employee-related measures
to support early leaves is €26.8m of which €0.6m has already been booked. A provision for employee-related
measures has been recognized over the period for €26.2m (see also note 8.8)..

On October 8, 2015, management of Arkena SAS and Smartjog France has initiated discussions with the Works
Council in order to change the strategic directions and the organization of these entities. Such developments will
likely lead to the implementation of a plan both for voluntary departure and reclassification within TDF SAS,
representing a workforce reduction of approximately 70 people. As of today, the best estimate of costs to be
incurred for these employee-related measures is €3.5m. A provision has been recognized over the period for this
amount (see also note 8.8},

Claims and disputes, other provisions

Claims and disputes mainly arise from litigation facing the Group.

These provisions are assessed and updated by senior management applying prudence in relation to damages
claimed and the status of each case.

Provisions for dismantling, decommissioning and restoring sites
In accordance with 1AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the amount recognized as a
provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s obligations, notably regarding TDF
SAS’ obligations.
The provision is discounted to present value using a rate that reflects the time value of money, based on the yield
of a risk-free bond. This actuarial estimate is reviewed every year and, if necessary, the provision is adjusted in the
following way (in accordance with IFRIC 1):

- by addition or deduction to/from the corresponding dismantling asset,

- orif the dismantling asset is already totally depreciated, the provision adjustment is taken to profit or loss.

Onerouss contracts
As at December 31 2015, as well as March 31, 2015, provisions cn onerous contracts concern TDF SAS.

10.7 Deferred taxes

Deferred taxes recagnized in the balance sheet are detailed below:

Restated
in thousands euras Dec 20315 March 2015
Deferred tax assels 51205 282
Deferred tax lighbilities 304 939 320 661
Met position - liability 304 644 2283 379
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The tax rates applicable for Group entities are as follows: 33.33% to 34.43% for French entities, 25% for
Netherlands, 20% for Finland, 22% for Sweden and 30% for Spain. Deferred tax positions have been netted by tax
jurisdiction.

Note that a one-off statutory increase in tax rate applies to TDF SAS and TDF Infrastructure SAS from fiscal year
2012 until year ended December 31, 2015. This one-off charge stands at a rate of 38%.

Breakdown by type of deferred taxes is as follows:

Restated

In thousands euros Dec 2015 Change March 2015

Tax losses to carry forward {1 328) 1837 (3 225)
Intangible fixed assets A5 739 & 374 {52 113}
Tangible fixed assets {85 487} 7024 {92 5113
Financial assets 5 = X
inventories 768 - 763
Trade recelvables 2 847 1130 Uried
Other receivabiss 1 858 {5 4443 7 304
Tax provisicns {208 598) 2178} (206 4203
Pravisions 23 024 6 711 16 313
Financial debt 2461 5252 {2 791}
Trade payables 49 {135} 86
(ther payables 5 659 4 834 10 493
Deferred tax liabilities {204 a44) 15 735 {320 379)

Unrecognized or impaired material deferred tax assets on tax losses carried forward as of December 31, 2015
concern:

- Tax losses carried forward of TDF Infrastructure SAS, Smartjog France and Arkena SAS (but it's to be noted
that these entities are also included in the tax consolidation group of Tivana France Holdings, main
shareholder of the Group, see note 8.10), for a total deferred tax of €605.7m (€577.8m as of March 31,
2015),

- Tax losses of the Dutch tax group, representing €1.0m of deferred tax assets,

- TDF Entertainment tax losses amounting to €4.7m of deferred tax assets (TDF Entertainment is currently in
liquidation},

- Arkena AB {ex Qbrick) entities tax losses totaling €2.2m of deferred tax assets,

- Other entities: €2.5m of unrecognized deferred tax assets.

10.8 Other current and non-current liabilities

Other liabilities are analyzed below:

Restated

in thousands euros Dec 2015 March 2015

Trade payables o1 811 81 026
Trade payahles on fixed assets aquisitians 32 053 SIS
Corporate income tax liabilities 988 7 852
Tax and social liabitities 86 713 1303093
Other currend liabilities 84 402 111 547
Current liabilities 295 967 367 830
Other non-current liabilities 23 817 41 451
Total liabilities 319 784 409 281

The tax and social liabilities primarily include cotisation fonciére des entreprises (i.e. "CFE"), social security payables,
VAT, and employee vacation provisions.

Other current and non-current liabilities include deferred income of €78.6m (€136.9m as of March 31, 2015) of
which €23.8m is maturing after one year (€41.5m as of March 31, 2015).
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11. Summary of financial assets and liabilities

Restated

December 2015 March 2015

in thousands euros 5 d
Bock value  Fair value Book value Fair value
Avaiiabie for sale financial assets 778 778 233 Zes
Assets held for sale - IFRS 5 11417 11 417 Ay ey 11 233
Financial assets at fair value through P&L = = -
Intarest rate swaps used for hedging = 5 = -
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging 3 b -
Assets carried at fair value iz 195 12 195 11 466 11 466
Loans and recelvables 211 368 211 368 299 969 299 969
Cash and rash equivalents 145 252 145 252 67 893 27 89%
Assets carried at amortised cost 356 620 356 620 367 B6E 367 868
Liabilities beld for sale - 1FRS 5 1. Ep 150 1773 S
inferest rate swap for hedging purposes z o 3
forward exchange contracts for hedging purposes = = =
Lizbilities carried at fair value 1517 1517 1773 1773
Financial dekst 2487 729 2 ABT 729 3 254 403 3254 403
Financial lease obligations 6 804 6904 677G 6779
Trade payabie and ather liabilities 319 784 319 784 409 281 409 281
Bank averdrafis 211 il 1425 1425
Accrued interest on financial debt and current accounts 25 744 25 744 416 416
Liabilities carried at amortised cost 2 344 372 2 840 372 3 672 304 3 672 304

The methodology used to determine fair value is described in note 4.12.

The following table gives an analysis by valuation methed for the financial instruments recorded at fair value. The

various tevels are defined as follows:

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived frem actual quoted prices in active markets.

» Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within

level 1, that are observable either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices).

» Level 3 falr value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that are not bhased on

observable market data.

Decemhber 2015 March 2015
in thousands auros lavel I level? leveld Tutal tevel I fevel 2 level3 Total

Available for sale financial assets - - 7i8 778 - 233 295
Met assets held for sale - IFRS & 9300 900 - 9 460 9 460
Financial assets at fair value through P&L = - - B -
Derivative financial assets 2 = < = = - -
- 10678 10 678 - 9693 49693

Derivative financiat tabitities = - - _ -
- - 10678 10 678 -~ 9693 9 693

Available for sale financial assets correspond to shares in non-consolidated entities.

At March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2015, net assets held for sale according to IFRS 5 correspond to net assets of

MCR {company (n Monacg, see the note 7.2).

57



Group TDF Infrastructure SAS
Notes to the consolidated financial statements December 31, 2015

12. Cash flows

General comments;

e Cash flows of German entities, sold on March 2015, are restated on the line "Net cash from discontinued
activities and entities disposed” in March 2015 figures and are commented in the note 12.5;

e Cash flows of Hungarian entities disposed of on May 30, 2014 and of MCR, remain included in net cash from
operating activities and net cash used in investing activities disclosed for March 2015 (see note 7.2).

« March 2015 figures are restated from the impacts linked to the application of IFRIC 21 (please refer to note 4.1).

12.1 Cash generated from operating activities before changes in working capital
Cash generated from operating activities excludes cash flows on non-current asset sales/purchases, income tax and

finance costs which are disclosed under Cash flows from investing activities, Income tax paid and Cash flows from
financing activities respectively.

12.2 Changes in working capital

r thousands eurcs Dec 2015 March 2015
Changes in inventories {1223 {1 867)
Changes in trade receivables 84781 (34 932}
Changes in trade payalies 8 898 17 566
Changes in prepaid income {58 426) 31 680
Changes in other working capital 031 ERR) {539)
Changes in working capital 14 908 11 288

12.3 Net cash used in investing activities

At December 31, 2015:
- The line “Acquisition of controlling interests, net of cash & cash equivalents acquired” of £(1.4m mainly
includes cash flows linked to the acquisition of AD Valem Technologies;
- The line "Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries formerly controlled of €(11.4)m correspond to the
repayment of expenses linked to the change of shareholders and the Group refinancing, recognize as
expenses last exercise and paid this year.

At March 31, 2015, the line “Net proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries formerly controlled” mainly includes:
- €182.1m corresponding to the impact of the disposal of Hungarian entities, out of which :
©€195.9m including the repayment of the loan granted by TDF SAS to its subsidiary Antenna
Hungaria (including hedging) as well as the sale proceed of the shares,
o €(7.3)m of disposal fees paid during the period,
o €(6.5)m of cash disposed of;
- €10.5m of net cash gain concerning the change of shareholders and the refinancing of the Group, cut of
which :
o €(4.7)m of expenses paid over the peried ;
o €15.2m of expenses and bonus reinvoiced to Tyrol Acquisition 1 & Cie SCA (former shareholder of
TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS), which were collected on March 31, 2015;
o Note that bonus of managers in the context of this operation, which was recognize as expense,
were paid after March 31, 2015 (see above).

“Change in other financial assets” mainly comprise deposits paid for patents as well as loans and advances granted
in relation to network deployments.
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12.4 Net cash used in financing activities

At December 31, 2015, drawdowns and repayment of debt principally correspond to:
- €600.0m proceed from the bond issuance followed by the repayment for €593.0m of the tranche A of bank
term debt (see note 10.2);
- full repayment of the revolving debt amounting €(30)m at March 31, 2015,
- €(2.1)m finance lease instalments paid,
- Increase in the current accounts with TDF Infrastructure Holding and Tivana France Holdings for €25.7m.

At March 31, 2015, drawdowns and repayment of debt are largely impacted by the refinancing of the Group that
occurred on March 31, 2015 and mainly breakdown as follows:
- €1,400m proceed froam term loans of the new bank agreement,
- €30.0m proceed from the new revolving debt,
- £815m proceed from a new shareholder loan towards TDF Infrastructure holding SAS (main shareholder of
the TDF Infrastructure SAS group; this loan has been completely capitalized on April 10, 2015},
- £1,023.7m proceed from a new shareholder loan towards Tivana France Holdings (shareholder of TDF
Infrastructure holding SAS),
- Contractual repayment of term debt for an amount of €(40.5)m (former bank agreement),
- Repayment of all of the outstanding term debt of the former bank agreement for an amount of €3
563.7)m, in the context of the refinancing of March 31, 2015,
- Net repayment of the former revolving debt for €(200.0)m (out of which €(30.0)m on March 31, 2015),
- €(2.8)m finance lease instalments paid,
- £74.1m increase in the current account related to the tax consolidation agreement with TDF Infrastructure
Holding SAS.

At March 31, 2015, balancing paymentis given on financial instruments are the following:
- €33.0m payment to terminate all swaps on March 26, 2015, prior to the refinancing of March 31, 2015,
- €1.5m paid concerning the currency option EUR / HUF which had been contracted related to the disposal
of Hungarian entities.

At the end of December 2015, expenses related to the financing correspond for €1.5m to a residual payment of
loan issue expense linked to the new bank agreement implemented on March 31, 2015 (€14.9m withdrawal at the
end of March 2015), as well as €7.4m of expenses on the bond issued on October 19, 2015.

The decrease in cash financial expenses between December 2015 and the prior period is mainly explained by the
Group refinancing occurred on March 31, 2015 resulting in:

- Alower average debt value compared to March 2015,

- Reduced margin applied to the debt,

- Termination of the swap portfolio held at March 2015.
Please refer to notes 8.9 and 10.2

The change in accrued interests between in March 2015 is exceptionally impacted by the payment of all accrued
interests {in particular also capitalizable accrued interests « Payment in Kind ») related to the former bank
agreement on March 31, 2015, and by the termination cf all swaps on March 26, 2015.

12.5 £ash fiows from discontinued operations

At March 31, 2015, cash flows from discontinued operations correspond to flows from activities of German entities.
At March 31, 2015 these flows also include disposal cash flows of these entities that are the following:
- €310.3m of repayment received for the loan granted by TDF SAS to Taunus Verwaltungs Il (including
accrued interests),
- €{45.0)m of repayment concerning the current account advance granted by MediaBroadcast to TDF SAS,
- €{0.4) m of disposal costs paid during the period.
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13. Workforce

Total Group headcount Is as follows:

Dec 2015 March 2035

France 1 BAG 1917
International 215 238
Total workforce at closing 2 05% 2 155
14. Auditor’s fees
Ernst & Young KPMG, FINEXS] et Autres TOTAL
i thousand of euros Dec 2015 March 2015 Dec 2015 March X015 Dec 2015 ’;:;‘5}1
Audit 365 408 337 658 o2 10674
Cither services o =
TOTAL 365 408 337 666 702 1074

15. Contingent liabilities and off-balance sheet commitments

15.1 Contingent liabilities (assets)

Contingent liabilities correspond to:
- Possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of
uncertain future events that are beyond the company’s control; or
- Present obligations arising from past events, whose are not recognized because it's not probable that an
outflow of resources representing economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or because
the obligation amount cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Contingent liabilities as of December 31, 2015
In February 2007, TowerCast filed a complaint with the anti-trust authorities, on the grounds that TDF had

alledgedly abused its dominant market position in relation to bidding for the tender launched by the city of Paris.
Anti-trust authority issued its decision on June 11, 2015, and fined TDF for €5.66m, which were paid in September
2015. The Group contests the alleged facts and appealed against this decision to the “Cour d'appel” of Paris.

Concerning the procedure with the anti-trust authorities following a complaint from the company ITAS TIM about
TDF's alledged practices in the terrestrial digital broadcasting services industry, anti-trust authorities’ services
issued their report on July 2015. TDF replied early October 2015 and contests the alleged facts. A hearing occurred
on January 26, 2016, no decisicon has been made yet.

FPS Towers brought proceedings before the Nanterre Commerciat Court in December 2015 in relation to a claim
for compensation for damage suffered as a result of TDF's alleged abuse of position and unfair competition in the
hosting services for the telecommunications equipment market in France. The Group will vigorously dispute the FPS
Towers' claim during these proceadings which are still pending.

Contingent assets as of December 31, 2015

Finally, following the « second digital dividend » and the CSA final decisions {French TV and radio regulatory body)
about the two multiplex R5 and R8 shutdown early April 2016, discussions were held between the State and
broadcasting operators. The Finance Act of December 29, 2015 attests that compensation will be given to
broadcasters (see also note 18).
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15.2 Firm commitments

A. Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee

The breakdown by maturity of non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:

In thousands euros Dec 2015 March 2015

Af less than 1 year 20749 25 TS
From 1 to 5 years 20 495 21332
More than 5 years 4233 STPh
Totak 45 477 52 193

At December 31, 2015, these leases are:

o Commercial leases

These leases concern administrative premises, offices and production sites (other than broadcasting sites).
The main leases relate to premises located at 106, avenue Marx Dormoy (Montrouge), 15 rue Cognacg-Jay (Paris),
27 boulevard Hippolyte Margues {lvry Sur Seine), and 4 rue Ampére (St Quentin en Yvelines).

The main features of these leases are;

- Premises located at 106, Avenue Marx Dormoy, Montrouge: effective date of lease: March 1, 2008; first
possible termination date: Feb 28, 2017; rent is indexed to the French INSEE index (construction cost
index),

- Premises located at Saint-Quentin-en-Yvelines: 9 years (firm); effective date of lease: April 1, 2008; lease
expires March 31, 2017; rent is indexed to the French INSEE index (construction cost index),

- Premises located at 27 boulevard Hippolyte Margues, Ivry Sur Seine: § years; lease expires Jan 31, 2017;
rent is indexed to the French INSEE index (construction cost index),

- Premises located at 15 rue Cognacq-Jay, Paris: 9 years {possible exit after 8 years); lease expires Sep 30,
2018: rent is indexed to the French INSEE index (construction cost price index).

Note that in anticipation of the expiry of the first three leases mentioned above, the Group looked for a new
headquarter and signed an exclusivity letter for the lease of an office building in Montrouge, located at 149/157
Avenue Plerre Brossolette and 42/44 avenue de la Marne. Through this letter, TDF is committed to:

- Pay €0.5m of compensation if it's not able to sign the lease before April 8, 2016,

- Pay €2.5m of compensation if TDF does not meet the exclusive requirements defined in the letter.

s Agreements for the occupation of public property

These agreements signed with state, regional and local authorities in France concern land on which broadcasting
infrastructures are installed (pylons, towers, building and related installaticns).

Usually, these agreements are concluded with local authorities:
- As a rule, these agreements run for 12 years (10 years from March 1, 2007 for the Eiffel Tower
broadcasting site in Paris),
- These agreements are renewable for the same term, whether or not by tacit agreement,
- Under these agreements, the land must be returned in its initial condition unless the parties agree
otherwise.

In continental France, there are 639 such agreements in force as at December 31, 2015 (654 as of March 31, 2015).

e Sites leases

These leases signed with private landlords (individuals, associations or companies) concern land on which
broadcasting infrastructures are (nstalled (pylons, towers, building and related installations).

In continental France, there are 3 819 such sites as of December 31, 2015 (3 692 as of March 31, 2015).
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B. Firm purchase commitments

Firm purchase commitments made by the Group are as follows:

ltc 5
in thousarnds ewlros Dec 2015 < 1 year > 3 years

years
Commitment of capex 12474 12 318 156 =
Commitment to buy satellite capacity 3l &1 =
Cammitment others 28 294 12 748 14 247 639
Total 40 799 25 097 15 063 639

) lio5
in thousands euros March 2015 < 1 year > 5 years

years

Commitment of capex 13 396 A 3468

Commitment to buy satellite capacity 126 126 - -
Commitment others 27 291 14 434 7514 3 343
Total 40 813 26 BB7 10 583 3 343

C. Firm commitments to provide services

Under multi-year contracts with customers, Group entities have committed to provide services in the following
business lines:

Dec 2015

tto 5

in thousands euros Projection < 1 year > 5 years
Actual years

Digital Television 162 298 422 12 145 304 269 619 7 689
Satelite 3225 7 L5 1 550 5602
Radio 98 637 223 044 134 211 105 371 3452
Totai Broadeasting Services 262 160 652 808 261 065 380 392 11 151
Telacons: site hosting 189671 1704 263 216 036 682 462 A6 465
Telecory: other services 23 63 9 357 3 640 5024 692
Total Telecoms & Services 212 734 1714320 219 676 687 486 807 158
Media Services 42 041 35 524 Z1 4805 14 118 -
Cthers 8 309 364 257 147

THPER] mewstiin  JuRllss van il 525244 2403016 502403 1082304 818 309

revenue
i thousands euros fitarch 2015 Projection < 1 year 1o g > B years
Actual years

Gigital Television 224951 448 978 192 967 250186 b BES
Satelite 2609 7 287 1423 4 981 BE3
Radio 136 369 285 986 120974 1582 442 2564
Total Broadcasting Services 363 929 742 245 315 364 417 619 9 262
Telecom: site hosting 263 982 1574 521 220767 700715 653 03%
Telecam: other services 43 292 9076 2 884 5 483 709
Total Telecoms & Services 304 274 1 583 597 223 651 06 138 653 748
Madia Services 58 469 42 147 23033 18 950 164
Qthers 16 306 348 238 110 -

il fewnge 4 SRy semisachral 742978 2368337 562286 1142877 663 174

revenue

The above table shows known and estimated information to date. In future periods, certain contracts may be
subject to pricing adjustments.
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15.3 Contingent commitments

Guarantees given

At December 31, 2015, the Group has given guarantees totaling €15.4m (€20.6m at March 31, 2015), of which:

e £10.6m (€11.7m at March 31, 2015} by way of an bank guarantee to Synérail Construction in conjunction
with the subcontracting agreement for the design and construction of the GSM-R for RFF (that also covers
subcontracting commitments given by TDF SAS). Besides TDF SAS paid over €6.1m by way of a collateral
to the bank that gave guarantees to Synérail, out of which €0.8 million has not been repaid yet as of
December 31, 2015 (€1.1m at March 31, 2015},

e €4.1m bank guarantee given to the Paris city council in connection with the Eiffel Tower occupation and
operation agreement (€4.0m as of March 31, 2015). This guarantee expires on February 28, 2017.

Guarantees received

The Group has received bank guarantees amounting to €18.3m (€69.0m at March 31, 2015), of which €17.7m
(€68.3m as of March 31, 2015) of subcontracting guarantees are related to radio and cable installations in
conjunction with Synérail Construction contracts.

TDF SAS

At December 31, 2015 TDF SAS has received offers to purchase sites for €0.9m.
The company is committed to participate in public research and other projects totaling €3.7m (€3.6 m at March 31,
2015).

In conjunction with the sale of Gobé, TDF SAS issued the following guarantees:
- TDF SAS undertook to buy at least €35m from Gobé {excluding services under the GSM-R contract) over
5 years and will pay Gobé compensation amounting to 15% of any shortfall in amount purchased in the
event of non-compliance. As at December 31, 2015, any residual compensation amounts to €0.5m
{(€2.1m at March 31, 2015);
- A liability guarantee capped at €0.8m has been granted and runs until March 31, 2016.

Under tax optimization schemes based on investments in French overseas territories, TDF SAS is committed to
comply with certain terms concerning these investments in order to retain tax related subsidies received amounting
1o €2.9m (same as March 31, 2015).

Disposal of Hungarian entities on May 30, 2014: guarantees given to the buyer by TDF SAS:
The guarantees given by TDF SAS as part of the sale of Hungarian entities have expired May 30, 2015, unexercised,

TDF Entertainment:

Under the liquidation process of this company, TDF SAS and DFI-BV have jointly issued a first demand guarantee,
towards TDF Entertainment liquidator and the lawyers company Roschier. This guarantee amounts €2m and will
end over 5 years after the effective liquidation of the company.

Disposal of German entities:

The sale contract for German subsidiaries from TDF SAS to Tyrol Acquisition 1 & Cie SCA (former shareholder of
TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS, which is the main shareholder of the Group) provides for payment of an additional
price to TDF SAS if, within the 12 months after the disposal that took place on March 31, 2015, Tyrol Acquisition 1
& Cie SCA was to sell one or more of the subsidiaries acquired for an amount higher than original transaction of
March 31, 2015. This earn-out equals to the difference between the resale price and the original transaction share
price (1 €) less the costs of sales that would be incurred by Tyrol Acquisition 1 & Cie SCA. See also note 18.

Acquisition of AD Valem Technologies (see note 1)
TDF SAS received guarantees, valid for 12 months Le. until the end of September 2016, and capped at €0.5m.
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DFl BV

Under the sale of Alticom, Axion and the Finnish companies TDF Nordic, Digita and Digi Waves Oy, the Group
issued guarantees to the buyers. At December 31, 2015, the following guarantees are still in force:

»  Alticom {sold June 7, 2011}

The maximum aggregate warranty for tax liabilities is €52.6m, including any tax liability of another
company far which Alticom was liable as well as any real estate transfer tax due in connection with the
sale transaction.

- The maximum aggregate warranty is €105.3m for the following matters: sellers’ authority and capacity,
corporate organization, shares,

Those warranties have been given for a 3 months period after the expiry of the prescription period relating

to the above mentioned items (that is March 31, 2017, for tax matters; September 7, 20186, for sellers’

authority and capacity, corporate organizations; September 7, 2031, for warranty on shares).

¢ Axion (sold October 13, 2011)
- Tax warranties {covering income tax, employment and social security matters) were given for a period
equivalent to the expiry of the prescription period for each matter, being July 26, 2016.
- Warranties relating to shares and third party rights and charges were given for an unlimited period of
time.
The cap on these warranties is equal to 7% of the transaction price, L.e. €8.6m, the Group being liabie for 65%
(representing its holding in Axion) Le. €5.6m.

+ TDF Nordic, Digita et Digi Waves Oy (sold October 18, 2012)
- Tax warranties given for a 60 month period following the sale expiring October 18, 2017 capped at
€468.1m,
- The other warranties arrived at the prescription term over the period.

Médiamobile

Médiamobile’s customer cantracts contain an industry warranty covering continued provision of service for three
years after the date of termination of the contract. At December 31, 2015 like March 31, 2015, this commitment
amounts to €5.7m over the three years, i.e, €1.9m per year.

Commitments under bank agreements as of December 31, 2015

Under the new bank agreement implemented on March 31, 2015, commitments were given. After the bond
issuance and the partial repayment of tranche A of bank term debt of €593.0m completed on October 19, 2015, the
following commitments were terminated:

- All commitments given by Tivana Topco S.A, Tivana Midee Sarl, Tivana France Holdings SAS and TDF

Infrastructure Holding SAS,

- Pledge of the financial instruments accounts recording the shares held by TDF Infrastructure SAS.
Following the bond issuance, the only commitments given in the context of the bank facility agreement
implemented on March 31, 2015 and which are still in force are the joint guarantees given by TDF Infrastructure
SAS and TDF SAS.
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16. Shares in associates

Since the end of November 2013, the Group consolidated the company Smartjog Ymagis Logistics under the equity
method. Smartjog France owned 40% of this entity.

On December 29, 2015, Smartiog France sold its shares. After recognizing an additional depreciation for €4.9m
(equal to €2.0m at 40%), the net gain / loss on disposal is nult.

Please note that this company’s financial year end is December 31. Figures that are consolidated at March 31, 2015
correspond to the company's accounts for the year ended December 31, 2014 (ie. 12 months), and figures
cansolidated at December 31, 2015 correpond to the company’s accounts for September (i.e. 9 months).

bDec 2015 March 2015

/, PFT
n thousands euros (9 months) {12 mois)

Ravenue 4 308 11 523
EBITDA {1 535) {2 652)
OPERATING INCOME {1L.OSS) {8 107) {16 751
Financial income and expenses {41} {158)
Income tax (52} i}
NET INCOME {8 200) (16 844)

17. Related party disclosures

17.1 Control

The Group parent company is TDF Infrastructure SAS (formerly Tyrol Acquisition 2 SAS), which is controlled at 100%
by TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS (formerly Tyrol Acquisition 1 SAS, see note 10.1), which is itself 100% controlled
by the French company Tivana France Holdings since March 31, 2015. Until March 31, 2015, TDF infrastructure
Holding SAS was 100% controlled by Tyrol Acquisition 1 & Cie SCA.

Since March 31, 2015, the TDF Infrastructure SAS group is notably included in the consolidated financial statements
of Brookfield Infrastructure group, using the equity method. Until March 31, 2015, it was integrated into the
consolidated accounts of the Strategic Investment Fund (FSI), subsidiary of Caisse Des Dépots, using the equity
method.

17.3 Compensation of key management personnel

Disclosure of the remuneration of the Group's key management is limited to people having the authority and
responsibility for managing and controlling the Group’s business. Historical data is not comparable, due to changes
in consolidation scope and special bonus schemes related to the Group's change of control impacting March 2015.
Figures for March 2015 are notably disclosed excluding German and Hungarian key management, as German and
Hungarian entities have been sold during the period.

Dec 2015 March 2015

in thousands euros
: : {9 months) (12 mois}

Lmployes benefits, including termination payments {1625} {5 454}
Fost-employment benefits = (47
Share-based payments

Total expense {1625} {5 581}
Provision for retirement indemnilies - 2899

Debt retated Lo equity instruments < -
Acguisition of equity instruments (cash out} s 3

Cash outflows and liabilities - 299
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17.2 Transactions with related parties

The related parties at TDF Infrastructure SAS Group level are identified as:

1. Companies owned directly or indirectly by TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS,

2. Companies owned directly or indirectly by Tivana France Holdings, Brookfield Infrastructure group, Public
Sector Pension Investment Board (PSP Investments), APG Asset Management N.V. and Arcus tnfrastructure
Partners, since March 31, 2015 (included),

3. Companies in which directors of the companies included in the TDF Infrastructure SAS group scope are
company representatives,

4. Key management personnel (see also previous note).

The main transactions with related parties were as follows:

th

» Interest charges invoiced to the Group by TDF Infrastructure Holding SAS between the first and the 10
2015 concerning the shareholder’s loan for €815m, amounting to €1.5m (€14.6m as of March 31, 2015} ;

April

e Capitalization of this loan and its accrued interest on April 10, 2015, counterpart the share capital (see note
ilfs g

e interest charges invoiced to the Group by Tivana France Holdings, amounting €60.6m on this period and
related to the loan of €1 023.7m implemented on March 31, 2015. These interests were capitalized for €39.9m,
counterpart the nominal debt, which now amount €1 063.6m at December 31, 2015 (€1 023.7m before} ;

» Net proceeds of £25.7m of shareholders current accounts (€25.2m with Tivana France Holdings and €0.5m with
TDF Infrastructure Holding), see also note 9.1.

»  €0.3m of income and €1.1m of expenses recognized by the Group over the period related to the management
fees agreement with Tivana France Holdings

Related party transactions were carried out on an arm'’s length basis on normal commercial terms.

17.3 Transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities

In March 2010 the Group took a 10% equity stake in Synérail (a company holding the RFF partnership contract to
roll out GSM — Rail) and paid over €6.1m by way of a guarantee to the bank that gave guarantees to Synérail, out of
which €0.8 million has not been repaid yet as of December 31, 2015.

18. Significant subsequent events

On February 8, 2016 a final agreement was signed with the Works council of Arkena SAS and Smarjog France SAS,
regarding strategic directions and the organization of these entities. It doesn't affect the provisions estimations
recognized at the end of December 2015 (see note 10.6).

Following the « second digital dividend and the CSA final decisions {French TV and radio regulatory body) about
the two multiplex RS and R8 shutdewn early April 2016, discussions were held between the State and broadcasting
operators. The Finance Act of December 29, 2015 attests that compensation will be given to broadcasters, and an
agreement to this effect was signed on February 9, 2016 between TDF SAS and the Government.

On February 17, 2016, the Group signed a lease for an office building in Montrouge, located at 149/157 Avenue
Pierre Brossolette and 42/44 avenue de la Marne. It's a 9 years lease from February 1, 2016 to January 31, 2026.
Both two commitments given in the exclusivity letter previously signed and disclosed in note 15.2 are therefore
obsolete.

Finally the Group has been informed that Tyrol Acquisition 1 & Cie SCA has sold the former German subsidiaries of
TDF SAS to an external purchaser on March 17, 2016. According to the additional purchase price condition
described in the note 15.3, it will trigger the right for TDF SAS to receive an additional purchase price from Tyrol
Acquisition 1 & Cie SCA, for an amount unknown for now, but which will be around 100 million euros and which
will be recognized as a profit in 2016.
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19. Consolidation scope

% Interests
Share
List of consnlidated companies Countries uaT capitalin € Dec March Ohbservation
thousands 2015 2015
Full consolidation
B MilFEPeR R, G France 300 060 100,00% 100,00%
(former Tyrol Acquisition 2 S5A5}
TOF 5AS France 166 957 100.60% 100,00%
Biffusion Qutre Mer Frange 108G0% Under imidaiion
Tiare France TE 100,00% 100,00%
MOR Monaco 54%  51,00% 51L00% Held for sale - fFRS 5
TDF Entertainment Oy Fintand 60 19806% jougon Crested In Sepember 2010, puiieta
¥ liguidation in March 2212
DFI BY MNetherlands 7 529 10000% 100.80%
AD Valem Technoiogios france 1294 100,00% Acquired in September 2015
Media Broadcast Germairy
Taunus Beteiligungs 1 Garmainy
Taunus Verwaltungs 2 Germany : :
D 1 £ b 31, 201
Taunus Management Verwaltungs Germany EpEns & Hiancth B, 2
Taurus Management Gmbh & Co Kg  Germany
Media Services GmbH Germany
Antenna Hungaria Hungaria Disposed of on May 30,2015,
Hungaro Digifel Hungaria classified as asseis held for szle
Digitalis Alzlasert Hungarla slhce March 31, 2014
Arkena SAS {ex - Cognacg jay! France 13 809 100.00% 100.00%
Smartjog France France 456 100,00% 100,00%
Arkena Inc {ex - Smartog USA) Usa 2070 100,00% 100,00%
Bebanjo Spain 2 100,00% 100,00%
Arkena Sp.zoo (ex PSN} Poland 4 28 100.00% 100,00%
Arkena holding {ex - Qbrick holding) Sweden Arkena 108 100.00% 100.00%
Arkena AB {ex - Qhrick AB) Sweden 46 100.60% 100,00%
Arkena AS {ex - Qbrick AS) Morway 10 100,00% 100,00%
Arkena A/S (ex - Qbrick A/S) Danemark 85 100.00% 100,00%
Arkena Oy (ex - Qbrick Oy} Finland 50 100,00% 100.00%
Arkana Spain 5L fex - Qbrick Spain 51) Spain 3 100.00% 100.00%
Meédiamobile France Madia- : 157 ¥319% Ti.19%
Medlamobie Nordic Finland mobite 3050 71,18% J31:,19%
Levira Estonia 9587 4900% 49,00%
Talinna Teletorn Foundation Estonia lL.evira 13 40.00% 4%.00%
Levira Central Europe Estonia 50 49.00% 49,00%
Equity method
smartjog Ymagis Logistics France Arkena 40,00%  isposed of on Decembre 29, 2015

The Estonian subsidiary Levira, in which TDF SAS holds a 49% equity stake and whose financial and operating

policies are determined by the Group, is fully consolidated.

Concerning German and Hungarian entities, please refer to note 7.

Concerning MCR, this subsidiary is classified as asset held for sale as of March 31, 2015: indeed a decrease in the
ownership bringing forth a loss of cantrol is already signed, and will be effective on March 31, 2016.

TDF acquired AD Valem Technologies in September 2015. TDF SAS owns 100% of this entity.

Finally, on December 29, 2015, Smartjog France sold its shares in Smartiog Ymagis Logistics, which was
consclidated using the equity method since November 2013 (see notes 1 and 16).
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